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BE | T REMEMBERED that an Electrical Board
nmeeting was held on Thursday, April 27, 2023, at 9:02
a.m, before CHAI RPERSON JASON JENKI NS, BOARD MEMBERS
BOBBY GRAY, KERRY COX, DOM NI C BURKE, | VAN | SAACSON, M KE
NORD, DYLAN CUNNI NGHAM DON BAKER, JACK KNOTTI NGHAM
ERI CK LEE, JAMES TUMELSON, and SECRETARY/ CH EF ELECTRI CAL
| NSPECTOR WAYNE MOLESWORTH. Al so present was ASS|I STANT
ATTORNEY GENERAL BEN BLOHOW AK, representing the Board;
VWHEREUPON, the foll ow ng proceedi ngs

were had, to wit:

<LKLKKLL L >>3>>>>

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. It
Is April 27th, 2023, in Spokane, Washington, at
approximately 9:02 a.m M nane is Jason Jenkins,
el ectrical board chair. 1'd like to call the Washi ngton
State Electrical Board neeting to order.

So | want to thank you, everyone, for attending.
It's been a -- for sone of us, a longer drive than
others, so it's -- happy to be here.

As we nentioned already, the court reporter is not
here today. So we'll be recording this neeting to be
transcribed later. And to maintain a good record, |'m

going to ask all to please speak your nane prior to
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saying anything. |It's going to feel awkward. If you --
give ne a hand on this to help ne out, if soneone is
speaki ng that -- maybe have them stop, |let them speak
their name so we can keep the recording (inaudible). |

appreciate that.

So -- and as a reminder, our next neeting is a
special neeting in Aynpia, Washington. [t is an
evidentiary neeting -- evidentiary hearing on June 1st

and 2nd, Thursday and Friday, 2023.

You all should have received an email on that. |If
not, let me know W'II|l make sure it gets sent out. And
If you can't attend, | nmuch appreciate an email back.

That way, we can nmake maybe a quorumfor this neeting.
Next regularly schedul ed neeting is going to be in
Pasco, Washington, on July 27th and/or (inaudible) as far
as details.
So we'll start off with the roll call. So Board
Menmber Erick Lee.
BOARD MEMBER LEE: Present.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber Don
Baker .
BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Here.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber
| van | saacson.

BOARD MEMBER | SAACSON:  Here.
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Dyl an Cunni ngham

Bobby G ay.

Dom ni ¢ Burke.

Jack Knottingham

M ke Nord?

Kerry Cox?

James Tunel son?

secretary for the

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER CUNNI NGHAM  Her e.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Here.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER BURKE: Here.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  Her e.
CHAlI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER NORD:. Here.
CHAlI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER COX: Here.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  And Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER TUMELSON: Present.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: And the
board, Wayne Mbdl eswort h.
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Present.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you.
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So for the record, we do have a quorum and first
item on our agenda today is the safety nmessage. And |'ve

asked Wayne Mol esworth, would you pl ease | ead that.

SAFETY MESSAGE
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: So yesterday we
had a supervisors neeting here in Spokane, and one of the
safety topics | thought was really relevant to travel,
because sone of you have traveled a | ong ways to get
here, probably drove, and the safety topic was distracted
driving.

And, you know, we think of distracted driving as
bei ng on your phone, texting, and just in general talKking
on the phone. You know, that's the -- that's what people
think. Right?

But tal king on the phone is not with your hands --
even in hands-free node, tal king on the phone is
di stracting because you're thinking about sonething el se
and not thinking about what's happening in front of you
and behind you in the vehicle.

And so we're having conversations about new policies
that are comng out in the agency about hand-free use.

W' ve deci ded that nmaybe we shoul d encourage peopl e not
to do hands-free use on the nove because you' re not able

to thi nk ahead.
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You know, |I've had instances nyself where |'ve been
tal king on the phone, private vehicle, ny owm tine --
want to nmake sure that's clear -- and -- and went by ny
exit, right, conpletely went by ny exit.

Ht that exit every day on ny way hone. Went right

by it because | was distracted. | was talking about
sonething else. | was deep into that thought about that
conversation and -- and realized that it was dangerous

for me to be doing that.

So ny topic today is virtually, when you're thinking
about distracted driving, don't just use your cup hol der
or your thing that's glued to your w ndshield to put your
phone in and then be using your phone while you're
driving. Anything can distract you fromwhat's happeni ng
in front of you and behi nd you.

Maybe you don't see that car comng up on you really
qui ck because they're texting on their phone, and they
hit you, and you don't get out of the way because you're
tal king to sonebody el se, and you're not paying attention
to what's happeni ng around you.

So please, for your safety and mne, | would
encourage you to think about distracted driving as a
whole. Anything that's not concentrating on what's in
front of you, behind you, beside you should be considered

di stracted driving.
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So thank you. That's ny safety topic for today.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Ckay. Thank you

very much.

APPROVE TRANSCRI PT FROM
JANUARY 26, 2023, ELECTRI CAL BOARD NMEETI NG
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: This is the
chair. Chair would entertain a notion to approve the
Washi ngton State El ectrical Board m nutes of
January 26th, 2022.
BOARD MEMBER NORD: Board Menber Nord,
noti on.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: W have a
not i on.
Do we have a second?
BOARD MEMBER | SAACSON:  Board Menber
| saacson, second.
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: W got a notion
and a second. Any discussion?
Hearing none, all in favor, signify by saying aye.
BOARD MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Any opposed?

Mot i on passes.

1111
1111
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APPEALS
RANDY' S HEATI NG

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: So noving on to
our next itemis appeals, as well as the -- we received

t he agenda, the Randy's Heating has been -- Randy's

Heati ng, ECHBQ01063, ECHB(Q01065, ECHBO01066, and
ECHBO01067 has been continued to the July neeting.

NCR CORPORATI ON

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  So noving on to

our next itemis the NCR Corporation appeal.

Do we have soneone fromthe Departnent, for NCR, and

do we have a (inaudible)?

WI1l you please take a seat up there and identify

yourself for the -- for the recording.

MR. BARNES: M nane is John Barnes,

"' man assistant attorney general, and | represent the

Depart ment of Labor and I ndustries.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very

nmuch.

MR FERN. Hello. M nane is Alex

Fer n. For the record, that's A-l-e-x, F-e-r-n. |

| ocal counsel for NCR Corporation. |I'm/local attorney

from Kut ak Rock.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very

am
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much. The matter before us today is an appeal of the
matter of NCR Corporation, Docket No. 02-2021-LI-01613.
The hearing is being held on pursuant and due proper
notice to all interested parties in Spokane, Washi ngton,
on April 27th, 2023, at approximately 9:08 a. m

This is an appeal of the proposed order on the
subj ect judgnment issued by the Ofice of Adm nistrative
Hearings on January 6th, 2022.

It is nmy understanding that the decision affirmed
citation notices ELYOD02202 and ELYOD02203 issued by the
Department of Labor and I ndustries on Septenber 22nd,
2020. It is further ny understanding the appellant has
timely appeal ed the decision to the electrical board.

So the electrical board is a | egal body authorized
by the legislature -- legislature to not only advise the
Department regarding the electrical program but also to
hear appeal s when the Departnent issues citations or
makes sone ot her adverse action regarding electrical
| i cense, certification, or conpliance.

The electric board is a conplete, separate entity
fromthe Departnent and, as such, will independently --
| ndependently review the actions taken by the Departnent.

When the Departnent issues penalties, the hearing is
assigned to the Ofice of Admnistrative Hearings to

conduct hearing pursuant to the Adm nistrative Procedures
Page 10

MR, Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N O O b~ W N PP

N N D N NN P P P P PP PR R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N P O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

Act. The ALJ who conducts that hearing then issues a
proposed decision and order. |If either party appeals,
that decision is subject to review by the electrica
board.

Pl ease keep in mnd that, while our reviewis
de novo, for exanple, we sit in the sane position as the
adm ni strative law judge and will reviewthe entire
record regardl ess of whether the certain piece of
evidence is referenced by the ALJ, we are bound by the
evidence in the record, and no new evi dence can be
submtted at this hearing.

Each party will be given approximtely 15 m nutes
today to argue their nerits of the case. Any board
menber may ask questions at -- anytine, and the tine may
be extended at the discretion of the board.

At the conclusion of this hearing, the board wll
determne if the findings and concl usions reached by the
ALJ are supported by the facts and the rul es pertaining
to the electrical installations.

Are there any questions before we begin?

MR. FERN: None here.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: As the
(i naudi bl e) party, you have the burden of proof to
establish the proposed decision isn't correct.

Therefore, we hear fromyou first.
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So once again, if you would pl ease speak your nane
and spell it for the court -- recording again.

MR. FERN. Yes. Once again, ny nane
Is Alex Fern, attorney for NCR Corporation. The nane --
or my nanme is spelled A-l-e-x. Last nane is spelled
F-e-r-n, like the plant.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  You may begi n.

MR FERN. Ckay. Well, thanks,
everyone, for taking the tine to neet with me today -- to
meet wth us.

| know that it's a pretty long record, so, you know,
l"mgoing to take the liberty of providing a bit of
background. |'massum ng that everyone here has had an
opportunity to at |east somewhat review the record, but |
know it's north of 3,000 pages. So | hope that | -- it's
okay with everyone just to provide a bit of background.

So NCR Corporation is a corporation based out of
Georgia. They're a business-to-business corporation.
They do not serve consuners directly. A lot of what they
do is software. |If you' ve used an ATM you probably used
software that's been devel oped by NCR Corporation.

And so that's -- that's really what they do. So
here, NCR -- you know what? |'mjust going to start from
t he begi nni ng.

What | am here today to appeal and where NCR
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Corporation feels |like there was an erroneous deci sion by
the adm nistrative | aw judge through the Ofice of

Adm ni strative Hearings is, it is the position of NCR
Corporation that these citations that were issued in this
matter were issued for a particular reason.

And I'mgoing to get into that reason in just a
mnute, but it is our position that the reason that those
citations were upheld was for a conpletely different
r eason.

So when you | ook at the OAH s decision, what they're
tal king about is, they talk about a contract between NCR
and Starbucks. And that's a nationw de contract. That's
a contract that NCR entered into Starbucks with in order
to set up really point of sale systens in Starbucks al
across the country because that's what NCR does.

Starbucks is in the coffee business. They're not in
t he business of setting up their conputers, setting up
their software, all that stuff. They |eave that to NCR
Then they go -- once that's set up, they go and they sel
their coffee.

So -- however, on this issue for summary judgnent,
when NCR was review ng the record, they were | ooking at

the reason that the inspector in this matter, Inspector

Lyon (phonetic) -- | hope |'m pronounci ng that
correctly -- Inspector Lyon issued these citations.
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Now, when you | ook at Inspector Lyon's deposition,
it's pretty lengthy, but there is one point in particular
where | nspector Lyon is asked point-blank very, very
directly, Wiy were these citations issued?

And when he is asked that, his response is, quote,
The basis of the citation was witten on the principle of
when | asked a contractor -- two different contractors
who they were hired by, | was told NCR And when | spoke
wi th soneone who identified thenselves as a project
manager for NCR representing Starbucks, that person
i ndicated that they hired two different subcontractors to
performthe installations.

So what we've got here is, we've got really two
different sets of contracts, if you will. So if what
we've got is -- NCRis this massive nationw de conpany,
and what they did is, they contracted with two ot her
nati onwi de conpani es, LM and SDS

And they went to LM and SDS and said, "Okay. W
need you to, you know, subcontract, you know -- we don't
know el ectrical contractors in each town in WAshi ngton
State. You do. That's what you do. So we're going to
contract wth you to contract wth other people to run
this electrical wiring."

So NCR contracts with LM and SDS. LM and SDS

contract wth these regi onal conpanies. These regional
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conpani es contract with |ocal conpanies. So what
happened here is, Inspector Lyon shows up to the site,
and he looks at -- he finds the | ocal guy, the guy who's
actually doing the work -- and by all accounts, | think
it's fair -- you know, | think it's undisputed that the
guy doing work on-site that day did not have a current
appropriate |license.

So | nspector Lyon said, "Ckay. Well, who hired
you?"

(1 naudi bl e.)

"Ckay. It's the regional conpany that hired you.
Vell, who hired the regi onal conpany?"

"LM and SDS."
“Well, who hired then®"
n NCR. n

And NCR is who |'mhere representing today. So it
| ooks |ike, you know, |I'm appealing NCR s citations, but
fromwhat | can tell fromthe record, it looks like fines
were issued all the way up the board.
And it's the official position of the inspector of
t he Departnent and of the Ofice of the Attorney General
t hat each and every one of these four conpanies, all the
way down the chain, needed to have an electrical |icense.
Now, as an NCR representative, | can tell you I'm

kind of thrown off by that because, you know, it's a
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Georgia corporation. W' re here entering these contracts
in Georgia, and, you know, we're not hol ding oursel ves
out saying, "Oh, we're going to be sending NCR people in
to do wiring."

In fact, if you ook at the Ofice of the Attorney
General, if you look at their own briefing, they say --
and | quote -- hang with ne here.

So if you look at their briefing and their response
to our notion for partial summary judgnent, they say that
NCR, quote, contracted with Starbucks to ensure that
various electrical and tel ecommuni cati on equi pnent was
i nstalled in Starbucks stores across Washi ngt on.

So, you know, if you |look at the deposition, there's
alittle bit of back-and-forth. W feel like that's
pretty clear. Even the Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral
who is representing, you know, L& in this matter isn't
really taking the position that, you know, NCRis really
goi ng and saying, "Well, as a software conpany, we're
going to try and figure out howto run wring on our own.
NCR doesn't do that."

VWhat they do is, they enter into nationw de
contracts with Starbucks, and they say, "W're going to
find people who do that."

But based off -- if you |ook at the depositions of,

you know, |nspector Lyon and M. Jordan, it's pretty
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clear that they say -- it's not pretty clear. It's

perfectly clear that they say, if you're going to

subcontract this work -- if you're going to say, "Ckay,
we're going to find sonebody -- you know, we'll set up
your Starbucks, and we'll find sonebody to run the

wiring," that everybody in that chain needs to have a
| i cense.

W just have a hard tine believing that's a fair and
justifiable position to be taking, that that's not an
erroneous and, you know -- | would use the words
arbitrary and capricious because that's the |egal
standard, an arbitrary and capricious application of the
| aw.

Sure, the guy on-site needs to have a |icense.

Maybe the guy who subcontracts him Maybe, you know,
even the regional contractor.

To say that the software conpany based out of
Georgia al so needs to have an electrical |icense they
were hol ding them-- when they said, "Ckay, we'll nake

sure it gets done," you know, that's just -- that's just
too far, in our opinion.

And so what happened, though, in this case -- and so
the way we're getting presented before you is that that's
t he argument we went in and nmade. W nmade this argunent

that I'm making right now, you know, to the Ofice of
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Adm ni strative Hearings.

And so -- but when you | ook at their decision,
they're not tal king about the contract that NCR nade with
LM and SDS and the contracts down bel ow and the
contracts down below that. They're |ooking at the
contract between NCR and Starbucks, the naster agreenent.

Wl l, when you | ook at the depositions and you | ook
at why the citations were originally issued, they weren't
| ssued because of that contract with Starbucks. That's
sort of a Monday norning quarterback situation is ny --
Is NCR s position on that.

So, sure, later on the inspector went, after the
citations were issued, after that decision was nade,
"Ckay, we've got sone violations here."

Then there was sone additional discovery nade, and
they said, "Ckay, well, there was this agreenment wth
St arbucks, and we think this agreenent with Starbucks --
you know, that you -- when we | ook at the |anguage you
had with Starbucks where you say, 'Ckay, we'll -- we'l
make sure that this electrical wiring is run,' that --
that's you agreeing to do electrical work."

And, you know, when you | ook at the |anguage of that
contract -- and I'mgoing to get intothis alittle bit
| ater, but when you | ook at the | anguage of the contract,

| could see if sonebody really wanted to read it that
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way.

Maybe they could say, "Well, NCR is saying that
they're going to run the electrical wiring thensel ves,"
but it's -- even, you know, the Ofice of the Attorney
General, after, you know -- after all this discovery was
conducted, even in their own | anguage, they concede, by
the very way they phrase things, that it was really just
NCR saying, "W're going to ensure that it's done."

NCR has never tried -- you know, we don't even have
people. 1'mlocal counsel. They don't even have anybody
hired i n Washi ngton. Nobody even cones renotely close to
Washi ngt on.

So that's really our main issue here that we're here

to ask for a reversal on is because, when you | ook at --

you know, and Inspector Lyon -- later onin this
deposition, he tal ks about, "Well, there were nmultiple
violations and there were -- | think there were

vi ol ati ons when you | ook at the Starbucks contract and
all that."

Once again, | contest that that's a Mnday norning
quart erback-type situation here, where he's saying,
"Ckay, well, after the citations were issued, | went and
| found these other reasons that they could have been
| ssued. "

But I'mnot here to tal k about why they could have
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been issued. |I'mhere to talk about why the citations
were issued because that's really the fundanental -- you
know, when we tal k about this being Anerica, fundanental
notions of due process.

You know, citations were issued for a reason. W
shoul d be able to appeal themon the reason they were
| ssued, not the reason that |ooking back maybe, well,
t hey coul d have issued citations for that.

| f that had happened, we woul d have nade those
def enses, but we didn't nake those defenses. W went to
the, you know, O fice of Adm nistrative Hearings, and we
said, you know, "This series of four contracts, we just
feel like that's too attenuated."

So on that priority basis, we'd ask that it be

rever sed.
Second off, you know, we just feel |ike, you know,
the -- and | know L& gets a |ot of due deference. The

law is really clear on that. Al agencies in Washi ngton
get a lot of deference in terns of howtheir -- how the
law is applied. They got to look at a statute. They got
to |l ook at the regul ations.

You know, and there's sone pretty clear case | aw

where it's |ike, okay, you guys -- you guys are the

el ectrical inspectors. You're the inspectors. | don't

know what the first thing -- | could barely plug in a
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conput er.

So when it conmes to who we're going to defer to,
maybe we shoul d be giving sone deference to el ectrical
I nspectors. Absolutely. Conpletely in agreenent wth
that, but that's got to be within the bound of reason.

And we think to say that, you know, it's a safety
measure that sonme conpany in CGeorgia can't reach a
nati onwi de contract with -- with Starbucks and then
contract wth a nationwi de electrical conpany who is
going to contract with a regional conpany and then just
enter contracts that say, "Ckay, nationw de el ectrical
conpany, you're going to go hire these regional or |oca
peopl e, and we're going to have insurance, and you're
going to provide us proof of insurance, and there's going
to be bonds" -- you know, to say that you're going to go
all the way up the Iine to the software conpany in
Georgia and apply the fines to them you know, it -- in
our opinion, that's just -- that's just too far.

That's not a reasonable application of the |aw
that's reasonably cal culated to ensure that people
entering a Starbucks and the workers of Starbucks are
going to be able to operate their equipnent in a safe and
ef fective manner.

Now, fine the heck out of the guy who didn't have a

|icense. That was foolish. |If you're on-site, you got
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to have a license. Mybe fine the guy who hired him
The guy who hired himhas got to be nmaking sure that he's

got a license.

But there are really two reasons -- you know, | just
don't -- we just think it's too far an interpretation to
say that, you know, the software conpany has to -- |I'm

repeating nyself at this point.

But the -- and the second point that was rai sed was
that, you know, if you ook at the -- in addition to
safety is -- was that, okay, well, we've got to nmake sure

that there's |icenses and bonded and insured. That's why
NCR needs to be -- needs to have an electrical |icense.
Well, first off, bonded and insured or insured at
| east is certainly different than |icensed. NCR did have
appropriate insurance. Their contractors had appropriate
I nsurance, but to say that they need to have a license in
order to subcontract down the Iine to ensure that there's
a bond in case sonebody does sonething wong -- you know,
t he argunment was that, okay, Starbucks had a contract
with NCR NCR needs to be bonded because then if sone
poor worker gets, you know, shocked and gets sent to the
ER and has a $20,000 bill, there needs to be sone bonded
i nsurance in place, and NCR needs to be licensed so they
al so have bonds and i nsurance.

Again, our two cents, far too attenuated. Sure,
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t here needs to be bond and insurance. Sure, NCR needs to
maybe | ook at the contract and | ook and make sure there
Is insurance in place, that there's -- you know, usually
you get a mllion dollars per conplaint is sort of
typical, and | think that's what the policy was here.

So -- but so long as, you know, there's reasonable
bonds in place that they -- that NCR took reasonabl e
steps and that they had -- that they're going to these
nati onw de conpanies and they're saying, "You're going to
have i nsurance. You're giving us assurances that there's
going to be insurance, you know, nmaybe we're getting
proof of that insurance,"” we think that really takes away
that whole risk altogether, so that sort of takes away
the basis of -- of the whole, "Well, there needs to be
I nsur ance. "

| do need to get one additional thing on the record.
That is that here -- and this is just sort of followup
to a previous argunent.

W went to the OFfice of Adm nistrative Hearings,
and we took the position that, okay, we think, you know,
this contract from NCR down to LM and SDS, the nati onal
contractors, all the way down the line, we think the fact
that we're four steps renoved contractually speaking from
the guy on-site who wasn't |icensed, we feel like that's

an unreasonabl e application of a statute.
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And we're not disputing what the contracts between
the local guy and the regional guy and the contract
bet ween the regional guy and the national guy and the
contract between the national guys and NCR say.

So there's no dispute what the contract says.
There's no dispute what the | aw says.

So let's go to summary judgnent on that. And for
t hose of you who nmay not be aware, summary judgnment is
just going to the judge or, here, the office of the --
you know, the admi nistrative |aw judge and sayi ng, "Ckay,
we don't have any dispute on those facts. So as a matter
of law, just |ooking at the contracts and | ooking at what
the statute says, should these fines have even been
I ssued? |Is that an unreasonable interpretation to say
t hat, you know, when the electrical contractor needs to
be contracted, that -- that includes NCR?"

VWhat happened here is, the Ofice of Admnistrative
Hearings said, well -- and we were very clear. If you
| ook at it, we tal k about how the issues can be divided
I nto buckets on the Decenber 6th transcript, and so we
say, "Ckay, on this bucket, there's no dispute. Let's --
let's see if we can get it dism ssed on this case,"” but
we didn't waive everything.

You know, there's substantial factual things. W

didn't even get a hearing. And here the adm nistrative
Page 24

,:A Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N O O b~ W N PP

N N D N NN P P P P PP PR R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N P O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

| aw j udge said, "You don't get a hearing on anything.

W' re dismssing the whole thing on sunmary judgnent, "
and -- but there are significant disputes of material
facts that we've got to raise because, here, the

adm ni strative law judge -- and if you do uphold it, you
say, "Well, | think it was reasonable to | ook at that

St arbucks contract even though it was not sonething that
was | ooked at until after the fact, and we think that
your contract with Starbucks is you agreeing that you
have done el ectrical work, even though we didn't | ook at
that contract until after the fines were issued or after
the citation decision was nade," it's just -- there are
addi tional material facts that we -- that we feel are
substantially in dispute.

So we woul d ask for a reversal also based on those
grounds, that we only asked for the judge to decide a
smal | issue, and he said, "Well, you're waiving as to
every issue."

And if you look at the transcripts of that
Decenber 6th hearing, the judge says, you know, Are
there -- are there material facts still contested here?
Are there things we need to have evidence on?

And we say absolutely. Now, we don't -- we think
there's no material facts on this small issue, but

there's material facts on a bunch of other stuff, and,
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frankly, | don't know -- | haven't been able to
understand the adm nistrative judge's |law ruling where he
says, "Well, we can't have it both ways. Either there
are disputes of material facts or there's not."

W take the position that you can say we have no
argunents on this point but still have argunments on ot her
poi nt s.

Here the material fact being disputed is, what was
the intent of the contract between Starbucks and NCR?

You know, we didn't have an opportunity to present -- and
| know we're not hearing new evidence here, but had there
been evidence, for exanple, where we're able to bring a
Starbucks CEOin -- not a CEO but a Starbucks person in
and an NCR person in and they both talk about, "No. NCR
has been doing work for Starbucks for 20 years. Nobody
ever thought they're going to run electrical wre.
They're a software conpany. That's crazy to think they
woul d be running electrical wire, so, no, that's
certainly what we didn't nean by this contract” -- we
never had an opportunity to nmake that argunent.

The whol e thing got dism ssed before we could even
take it for hearing. W were scheduled for a week of
hearing. It's along tinme. |It's a seriously |ong
heari ng.

So just want to raise that point.
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CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Don't want to
interrupt too nuch, but we're at our 15-m nute mark.

MR. FERN:. Ckay. Well, | think I am
just about done. So thank you for taking the tinme to
hear nme, and | woul d wel cone any questions once
M. Barnes is had an opportunity to present.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: All right.

Thank you very nuch. So (inaudible) introduce and spell
your nanme for the recording and then go ahead and take
the fl oor.

MR. BARNES:. Thank you. M nane is
John Barnes, J-0-h-n, B-a-r-n-e-s, and | represent Labor
and I ndustries.

The facts in this case are not that conplex. Fact 1
Is that NRC Corp. is not an electrical contract- --
regi stered electrical contractor in the state. They're
not a tel econmunications contractor in this state, and
they're not even a general contractor in this state.

Yet they entered into a contract with Starbucks, the
basis of which was -- the subject of it included
el ectrical and tel ecommunication installations.
Specifically they installed Category 5 and Category 6
t el ecommuni cati on cables, as well as running el ectrical
out to -- or audio and for mc services at the

drive-through.
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As part of that, that was installing a conduit,
pul l'ing strings, and junction boxes. So that is what
they -- the contract included.

So even if NCR Corp. was not going to be responsible
to be the ones that actually did the wring, they were
responsi ble for that contract, which included the
electrical installations. That's why they were cited.

Now, the definition of an electrical contractor
i ncludes an entity that offers to undertake, undertakes,
or submts a bid for installing or maintaining wres or
equi pnent that convey el ectrical current.

NCR certainly undertook and offered a -- nade a bid
for this contract. At the very heart of it was the
installation of electrical and tel ecommunications
equi pnent, as well as the installation of the hardware
and software that eventually was run to. So that is why
t he Departnent cited them

Now, NCR contends that it is not an electrical
contractor because -- sinply because they didn't do the
work. That's the crux of their argunent. Sonebody el se
didit.

They contracted -- well, in fact, they subcontracted
to two different conpani es who neither one of themwere
el ectrical contractors who then contracted further down

the line to -- eventually to the people who did the
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installation. So, yes, in this particular framework,
there were many violations by different conpanies
t hr oughout it.

Now, the contract itself -- the contractual
rel ati onshi p between Starbucks and NCR was, NCR agreed to
manage the installation of equipnent to provide on-site
i nstallation services to obtain | ow voltage installation
permts, which they weren't -- weren't able to do anyway
because they're not electrical contractors, and to
install conduit, pull strings, and junction boxes. So
that was the nature of the -- of that contract.

There were a nunber of argunents nmade. Sone of them
that were nade dealt with whether or not the statute was
anbi guous. And if it was anbi guous, then they went to
statutory interpretation principles.

O course, the IHA and the Departnent argue that the
statutes are pretty clear on their face. I1'd just rem nd
you that NCR received 31 violations of -- for 31
violations for electrical -- maintaining the electrical
equi pment without having a valid electrical contractor's
| i cense and 53 violations for the tel ecomuni cations
syst ens.

Now, the way that the contract actually worked was
that NCR billed Starbucks. Starbucks then -- billed

St ar bucks and then NCR paid the sub. So Starbucks just
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made one general paynent, and then NCR was the one who
managed the -- the whole contract and including the
installations. So Starbucks sinply paid them They then
paid their two subcontractors who then woul d pay whoever
they hired and so forth.

Now, if there was any additional work that cane
about upon request, they were to -- they would be -- paid
for this by a fee, and there was a fee schedule in the
record.

Now, NCR in their contract, they also said that they
will provide on-site cabling installation services in a
prof essi onal manner by trained and experienced personnel.
Vell, we know at |east fromthe one that |nspector Lyons
got, that was not the case.

Now, what seens to be the big hang-up is this
subcontracting and -- because the statute for electrical
work or tel ecomunication or electrical work does not
I ncl ude subcontracting.

It includes offering to submtting a bid,
advertising, conducting. You know, there's six different
ways that statute can be -- can be net. Subcontracting
IS not one of them

And NCR takes that and says, "Oh, therefore, those
viol ations do not count.” However, when you read

| nspector Lyon's deposition, what he's saying is, NCRis
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actual Iy conducting business -- or electrical business by
t hensel ves subcontracting that portion of the contract
out.

So that's how the subcontracting plays in, not that
subcontracting is not included in the -- in the statute,
but by subcontracting, NCR was actually conducting and
acting as an electrical contractor, and pursuant to that
s why those citations were issued.

Now -- and it also ignores the fact that there are
si X enunerated provisions in this statute that woul d
define you as an electrical contractor, and NCR i gnores
all of them

The only thing they cite is the subcontracting, but
they did offer and they did submt a bid, whichis a
viol ation of the statute right there, to -- by signing
this contract or by entering into this contract which,
for all intents and purposes, were for electrical and
t el ecommuni cati on wor k.

So | don't think they can sinply avoid it by saying,
"Well, okay, yes. W do -- we agree that we will -- that
we fall under this statute because, yes, we offered and
we submtted a bid and -- but, however, there's no
subcontracting, so that would take us all the way out of
the statute.” That's just not a reasonable

interpretation of the statute.
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And there's also -- just because subcontracting is
not mentioned in the statute, you know, doesn't nean
that -- that there's no violation of the statute.

Let nme just review ny notes real quick.

And as far as the safety is a concern, the reason
for the electrical code is so that -- is for safety and
for consuner protection and al so protects the other
el ectricians out there.

And it doesn't make a whole | ot of sense on a safety
Issue if a nonelectrical contractor is, you know, able to
performthis work and escape any liability for it.

And then | did want to just kind of finish up with
one thing that -- in this -- the actual agreenent between
the parties, this is between Starbucks and NCR, and in
their -- which was referred to in their responsibilities
in Exhibit Ato -- | believe it's Exhibit 41 -- it says
that NCR will have an on-site representative at store
| ocation during NCR s performance of services. 1In 6.2,

It says, "You are responsible for obtaining all necessary

permts, licenses, and rights-of-way or all out-of-scope
services."
Wel |, again, one of their requirenents was to get

all the necessary permts, electrical permts, which they
couldn't do thensel ves.

And then finally, it says, "You are responsible for
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installing conduit with pull strings and junction boxes
per applicable code."

Now, those certainly are electrical activities that
require either an electrical contractor's |license or
that, you know, that should be an electrical --
electrician in order to performthose. None of those
t hi ngs happened.

So then the final argunment he nade appears to be one
that they only noved for partial summary judgnent and not
total summary judgnent. Sonehow the | HA confused the
two, but if you look at the record, that's not correct.

They noved for sunmary judgnent. The Depart nent
noved for summary judgnment when they responded, so it was
I n response that -- to the summary judgnent that the | HA
ended up finding for the Departnent that these citations
wer e uphel d.

So that's all | have. [|f you have any questions,
|'"d be happy to answer.

CHAl RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very
much, fromthe chair.

Any comments or questions fromthe board nmenbers?

(Si nul t aneous speaki ng.)
BOARD MEMBER BURKE: Yeah. Board
Menber Dom nic Burke, B-u-r-k-e. This one is a rea

struggle for me. Qur general contractors do this all day
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every day in the state of Washington, and they have

el ectrical subcontractors that are neeting the

requi rements of the licensing that we have in the state
of Washi ngt on.

There isn't a general contractor | know that has an
admn license or has an electrical contractor's |icense,
and they subcontract every day.

So just for discussion, I -- 1 -- | don't -- | guess
maybe |' m not seeing sonmething correctly, but the
contractual obligation for the general contractor to
ensure good installation and have a representative
on-site, it has nothing to do wth the electrical
i censing | aws.

They are the -- they are the Q0 QA or maybe in a
GCCM contract and they will subcontract that work. So,
to ne, | nean, that -- whoever the contractor was that

was hired and the electricians that did the work that

weren't licensed, | would put ny focus there.
But if -- if -- if -- if something like this is
uphel d, | think we're going down a really slippery sl ope,

and you better go neet with every general contractor in
the state of Washington and tell them (inaudible). Just
makes no sense.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Board Menber

Baker. It was fun watching your facial expressions,
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Dom nic, during the presentations.

Yeah. 100 percent agree. Qur general contractors
engage in contracts like this all the tine.

M. Barnes, | think you said that in the contract
they are responsible for the installation of the conduit
and wire. Qur general contractors are responsible for
that installation.

W ultimately are responsible to adhere to the | aws
of the state by getting permts and having |icensed
electricians and followng all the rules and regul ati ons,
whi ch the subcontractors in this case woul d have been
responsi bl e for.

In addition to that, we have integrators throughout
our state -- I'mnot going to nention their nanes -- that
oftentines wll subcontract under a mechani cal
contractor, and then they wll subcontract to an
el ectrical contractor for DVC controls and very simlar
to this case.

And the electrical contractor is responsible for the
permt. They're responsible for the installation.
They' re responsi bl e for inspections.

And, yeah, | agree with Domnic. If -- if -- if, by
subcontracting, NCR acted as an el ectrical contractor,
that is a really dangerous statenment to say because every

general contractor, all of our integrators, a |ot of our
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clients contract wth electrical contractors.
| mean, do you -- where is that |ine of demarcation?
Yeah. |'mstruggling with Dom nic to understand, you
know, where is the snoking gun here? What did NCR do
wrong because this |looks -- this |ooks |ike norma
day-t o-day business to ne.
So |''m asking other board nmenbers to point it out to
me because | can't see it.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very
much.
Secretary Wayne Mol esworth?
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Wayne
Mol esworth, Mo-l-e-s-wo-r-t-h. Question for NCR s
counsel, is NCR a general contractor in the state of
Washi ngt on?
MR, FERN:  No.
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  No. Would it
be acceptable to think, since an electrical inspector
| ooked at this, that the law actually requires that, in
order to subcontract in the state of WAshi ngton, that you
have a general contractor's |icense at the m ni nunf
MR FERN. |'msorry. Could -- could
you repeat the question?
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Is it

reasonable to -- or is it -- do you understand that in
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the state of Washi ngton, that you have to have a general
contractor's license in order to subcontract at a

m ni mun? El ectrical contractors can al so subcontract for
that work that's (inaudible) their (inaudible)?

Is it reasonable to believe that since this was done
by an el ectrical inspector, ECORE person, that he was
applying the electrical |icense because he had al ready
established there wasn't a contractor's |icense?

MR FERN. | nean, that's certainly
not reflected in the record. That's not -- that was not
the basis of the citation that there was, you know, not a
general contractor's license. So that's -- that's not
why the fine was issued or upheld, at |east so far as the
record shows.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  But are they
aware they needed a general contractor's license at a
mnimmto -- to do -- either-or to do --

MR FERN: It's ny understanding that
a general contractor needed to be involved, that, you
know, a general contractor needed to be subcontracted
with. So that general contractor needed to be invol ved.
|"mspeaking a little bit out of turn here because this
was not -- but --

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So |' m j ust

establishing their relationship, according to what the
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ot her board nmenbers have nentioned, is that this is not a
scope -- it really isn't because they didn't have any
license in the state of Washington that would allow -- or
ot her general contractors in the state of Washi ngton have
to have a license in order to subcontract to other
contractors.

And so | would ask M. Barnes if that's -- if |I'm
accurate in that statenent froma | egal point.

MR. BARNES. Well, yes, you are. And
like | mentioned right off the top, that NCR was not even
a general contractor. They --

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: R ght.

MR. BARNES: That mi ght be the
di stinction in this case because they were not -- while
general contractors can generally subcontract, if you're
not even a general contractor, then you're just a
corporation taking it on yourself, and | think --

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  And | think I'm
under standi ng that the contract specifically was between
St arbucks and NCR. So what NCR was doi ng was
establishing a contractor relationship with Starbucks
t hrough that contract.

MR. FERN:. | would disagree. | would
argue that they were signing on as a project manager.

That's the termthat was continually used by NCR and by
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St arbucks, both, you know, in the contracts and the
depositions and throughout. So they were signing on as a
proj ect manager to appoint appropriate parties.

You know, | would also very respectfully argue |
think that may be -- | think your question may be beyond
the scope of what's at issue here, just |ooking at the
record and | ooking at the basis of OAH s deci sion and
whet her that decision should be upheld or overturned.

But | think your point is well taken. | would -- |
woul d contest that in a simlar situation in which a
general contractor may not be involved -- you know, for
exanple, I'mthinking of a situation where -- where --
here's one.

So we've got a landlord -- a property manager for a
commercial facility and --

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  One second. |Is
this part of the -- Jason Jenkins, chair.

Is this part of the packet, this conversation you're

starting?

MR. FERN. M exanpl e?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Yes.

MR FERN: It is not contained within
t he packet.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Yeah. Let's

stay out of that.

Page 39

,:A‘ Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N O O b~ W N PP

N N D N NN P P P P PP PR R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N P O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

MR. FERN:. Ckay.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  |' m j ust
establishing the overall relationship conpared to what
the other two board nenbers had actually di scussed about
what our general contractors can do in Washi ngton and
that NCRis not a general contractor. So that does not
apply to them

And a project manager, just for the board, there's
nothing in the law that allows sonebody to act as a
proj ect manager, per se, wthout having a contractor's
license. So they would have to have a general
contractor's license at a mninmnumto be able to act in
that -- in that -- in that way.

MR. FERN. But to your points, | nean,
do you think it would be permissible if NCR had hired a
conpany who hired a general contractor who hired an
el ectrician?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So not with the
contract the way it sits between NCR and Starbucks.

MR. FERN: Ckay.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: That's the
probl em here in Washington with the |aw -- the way the
law i s set up in Washi ngton.

| did want to nake one comment, though, as far as

when you tal ked about -- that the inspector nentioned
Page 40

,:A‘ Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N O O b~ W N PP

N N D N NN P P P P PP PR R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N P O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

that he could have cited you in other |locations. Right?

And you said that -- he said there was ot her
I nstances that he could have cited, and you nentioned it
was ki nd of a Monday norning quarterback, that he could
have done that.

They often do that to show | eniency. W coul d have,
but we only kept it to this scope of -- of citations,
right, or this many. It shows |eniency, that we're
taking into consideration the scope and the broadness of
that citation.

Just wanted to nmake sure we're clear on that. |t
wasn't that he was threatening or anything. He was
denonstrating | eniency. Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you.

Jack Knottinghanf

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  Boar d
Menber Knottingham K-n-o-t-t-i-n-g-h-a-m | have a
question. | really don't know who to address it to, if
It would be Wayne or the AG but if a contractor |icense
Is required, can we really cite them underneath
electrical if the GEC is required?

" m kind of struggling wwth that. | understand what
Dom nic said, and Don, and | agree with that, but |'m
wondering if citations were issued by the wong

depart nent.
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SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Do you mind if

MR. BARNES: o ahead.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: So -- so Wayne
Mol esworth. So when we | ook at that instance -- and |
can't tell you right offhand if -- if the electrical
i nspector asked NCR if they were a |icensed general
contractor or if they didn't, but we can actually cite
t hem under either code.

And since this was an electrical inspector doing
this investigation, he cited themas a -- as an
el ectrical contractor.

The defense woul d have been, no, NCR is a general
contractor, and, therefore, we have the ability to
subcontract. That wasn't the defense. Right?

So it doesn't matter which entity actually cited
them Either could, and -- and -- but this -- but the
agency actually -- the electrical inspector that was
I nvestigating cited it for not being an electrical
(1 naudi bl e).

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: All right.
Thank you very much.
So Board Menber Dom nic Burke?

BOARD MEMBER BURKE: Sorry. | was
just going to ask a questi on.
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So the electrical inspector could not have cited for
not having a general contractor's license; correct?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  He woul d have
made a referral to the contractor conpliance division.

BOARD MEMBER BURKE: That's not the
el ectrical departnment's -- in their purviewto cite for
no GC |icense; correct?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Not for a
general, but -- but he is able to cite himas not having
the electrical contractor's |icense.

BOARD MEMBER BURKE: | agree wth
that. But he can't cite for not having a GC |icense;
correct?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  No. Correct.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Chair Jason
Jenkins. M thought on this is, he didn't have a general
contractor license. Therefore, they can't subcontract.
Therefore, the State went (inaudible), if you follow the
progression of electrical contractor's |icense,
el ectrician. You have the contractor. You have the
subcontractor. The next step up would have been the --
anot her electrical contractor or GC

Since they weren't there, the State said, "Wl|I
since the licensing is mssing, we're going to cite you

on not having a contractor's |icense."
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Had they had a GC license (inaudible). So I can see
where the State stands on that, and | get it, and | -- |
don't know if this (inaudible) four steps away fromthe
actual (inaudible) nmakes any difference. At sone point
there has to be a general contractor or an electrical
contractor subbed out. That's where | stand on that.

(I naudi bl e) place there (inaudible) violation is
still a law

Question, Board Menber Kerry Cox?

BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox,
C o- X.

So isn't that what the SDS and the LM did? Wre
they not -- NCRis a software conpany. As a telecom and
06 contractor, we've been that fourth party, that we get
call ed by sonebody like a -- well, a regional conpany
from-- fromthe state of Washington that wants to
contract us to install in a bank or wherever it mght be,
some card readers, whatever it is, install some network
cabl e,

W're contracted to them who then contracts out to
a--1 think you referred to it as an aggregator. Their
job is to sinply know who all the contractors are in that
particular state, who then works with anot her conpany
that m ght be regional in the Pacific Northwest, who

ultimately works for -- is hired by Oracle out of
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Colorado to install their software and servers and what
have you, and part of that is installing sone cable for
an end point.

|s that not the responsibility then -- because
you -- | just understood you to say sonewhere along the
| ine, you ve got to have a contractor license in the
state of Washington that can subcontract.

And as | understand the record -- and, yeah, it was
alot -- is that's what NCR did, is they have a
managenment contract wth Starbucks nati onw de where they
contract with folks who are licensed in order to do the
subcontracting with the local entity.

Li ke | said, nyself and ny conpany have been in that
fourth-party position. You're right. Were does that
stop? It looks like LM and SM5 or whatever it was --
that's where that should -- should have stopped or the
subcontracti ng began because NCR is sinply a project
managenent conpany, as | understand the record.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Jason Jenki ns,
chair.

The one thing I would say (inaudible) if you follow
t he noney, the noney went from Starbucks to NCR  NCR at
that point is now the general contractor.

They're the ones that should have -- they could have

subcontracted it out all at that point there since
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they're doing -- they're not the owner of the business.
St ar bucks i s.

St ar bucks shoul d have gone to NCR -- or not to
NCR -- but to SM -- the other conpanies. |f they pay
themdirectly, the subject is null because at that point
there, they're paying the subcontractor directly. It's
their contractor that they're dealing with

In this case here, they're dealing with NCR and NCR
IS not a contractor. (Inaudible) explanation you gave
bef ore, where you are a contractor, so you are the
burden. You're the starting point. Sone custoner pays
you. You're the starting point, and you can subcontract
all you want because you're the final say.

There is no contractor when you deal with NCR
They're hiring sonebody that has no responsibility if
sonet hi ng goes sideways. They can say, "Well, that's
their problem That's their fault. W don't carry
I nsurance for that because they're supposed to."

| f you have a contractor's |icense, now you' ve taken
responsi bility for the unbrella portion of it, and there
IS no unbrella portion when it cones to NCR

Now, ny understanding is, they have insurance and
everything el se and they can probably be backed up, but
the general picture to all the rest of the state and

anybody el se doing this type of work, if there's no
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contractor, you take no responsibility.

There's no chain. It's you (inaudible) contractor's
| i cense (inaudible). So an unbrella portion would start
at NCR.

And like |I said, if Starbucks had gone to their
subcontractors who paid themdirectly and said, "W're
going to hire you" on their discretion, their input, |I'd
say, yeah, this is (inaudible) this whole conversation,
but they paid NCRto hire those contractors. So follow
the noney in that direction.

BOARD MEMBER COX: As | understand the
record, Starbucks corporately paid NCR as -- for software
and systens, project managenent. NCR then hired soneone
who coul d carry that out.

It's not -- when |'ve gone out on -- on these
fourth-party job sites, I'"'mhired by a conpany out of
Washi ngton State to go out and I"'mtold, "Here is how you

will represent yourself."

" mnot going to get paid by the local -- the -- the
conpany -- if I'mgoing out and doing a U S. Bank job,
|'mnot getting paid by U S. Bank. |'mnot going to send

an invoice to U S. Bank. U S. Bank doesn't see ny
contractor's license. It doesn't see ny insurance and ny
bond and all of that.

|"mdoing that to this regional conpany who then is
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being hired by a national conpany, that their position is
to go out and know who the contractors are hiring.

The nmoney from U. S. Bank goes to a national conpany
t hat manages all their software, servers, end points.

It's not a matter of follow ng the noney.

It's -- | agree with you. You have to have soneone
who ultimately can -- whose |icense in Washington State
to contract -- you know, to subcontract that.

As | read the record, NCR is not that conpany. NCR
Is sinply receiving the noneys from Starbucks as a
national contract to manage all of their information
t echnol ogy systens.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber
Baker ?

BOARD MEMBER BAKER:  You said a | ot of
things there, Jason, that | don't necessarily align wth,
and | don't knowif -- when we're tal ki ng about general
contractors and insurances and responsibilities and
liabilities, I don't know that we have enough know edge
at this board to address that.

We do understand the electrical side, and | do not
bel i eve NCR was acting as an el ectrical contractor when
putting this contract together. | don't believe they
violated | aw and that they advertised to do el ectrical

wor K.
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| think they signed a contract -- it's ny opinion
that they signed a contract that is going to ensure
that -- what it says in the statenents of facts here is
t hey contracted Starbucks to nmanage the installation of
el ectrical tel ecommunication.

At that point we have to ask the question, how were
you guys planning on managing that? Wre you going to
self-performit? Because if they were self-performng,
now you have to have a |icense. Now you have to get a
permt. Now you have to follow all those things.

But their nethod of managing it was very simlar to
our general contractors and our integrators. They went
to a professional industry and said, "Hire an el ectrical
contractor,"” which they did. And that electrical
contractor, | think, sonme had |icenses and sone of them
didn't. Sonme of them had permts; sonme didn't.

That, | believe, is a line of demarcati on where L&l
shoul d have pointed their focus. They should not have
gone all the way back to NCR and the contract with
St ar bucks.

Every -- every conpany in our state does this thing.
They're all doing this. They're all hiring agencies |ike
NCR t o manage these type of networks. Conpanies like his
are engaged with themall the time. Qur conpany is

engaged with themall the tine.
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So | believe that L& -- well, | haven't seen
anything that convinces ne otherwi se that L& didn't
overstep. So help ne understand where they -- where NCR
went wong here because | do not see it. (Ilnaudible.)

(Si mul t aneous speaki ng.)
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Wayne
Mol esworth. So when we | ook at aspects of this as the
board, we have to look at the law. Right? This is not
how we' ve done busi ness, how others do business. This is
how we do by the law in the state of Wshi ngton

What -- what we've -- what we're describing is a
general contractor relationship when we talk about, as we
did earlier, that they entered into a contract. They
paid them noney for themto hire others to do work.
Right? That's subcontracting by definition.

And so in order to subcontract in this state, the
| aw requires that you either have the proper |icense for
the category you're in or a general contractor's |license
in order to subcontract that work.

Now, there could have been different relationships
In these other instances, but in this instance, it was a
definite |l egal contract between them whether it was
national, local, or otherwise. And we also found people
that were not |icensed at the bottomof this. R ght?

Now, | would ask counsel, was there anyone in this
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| ine that was actually a licensed electrical contractor,
starting at the guy that actually did the work in
St ar bucks?

MR. BARNES: Yes, there was. There
was an electrical -- there was sone -- you need an
el ectrical contractor to pull the permts, so downstream
from--

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So now we' ve
got a problemthen because now we've got sonebody that's
purchasing a permt for an unlicensed contractor to do
wor K.

So there's -- there's so many problens in this, and
so what we have to do is, we have to make sure that we're
equally enforcing this |aw for everybody. Unfortunately,
NCR is a big conpany, but they've still violated the |aw
as it's witten.

And so we have to nake sure that our general
contractors in this state are being applied the sane way
as we apply this to national conpanies. W do have a | ot
of national conpanies that cone into this state and do
simlar things, and we require themto be contractors,
and a ot of themare.

But the problemhere is that we're trying to nmake an
exception when it's clear to ne that we have a cl ear

contractual relationship between Starbucks and NCR - -
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or -- yeah, NCR, and that NCR then hired others to go
downline and do this work, and so that's consi dered
subcontracti ng.

They shoul d probably change busi ness practice, and
that's why this state issues citations, is to change
behavior. Right? This is not a penalty. This is, "You
need to change your behavior and this is why in this
state.”

This is not -- this is not -- |I"mnot talking about
the rest of the nation. This is the state of Washi ngton.
Right? W have specific |aws that pertain to this.

So I'"'mgoing to stop there because I'ma little --
editorializing a little bit, but I think we need to keep
in mnd that we apply this to all contractors evenly, and
anybody that's subcontracting in this state, that's from
this state, has a general contractor's |icense, period.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Thank you. Board
Menber Baker.

So -- so, Wayne, that's -- that's where | guess |
struggl e, and going back to Jack's question, if they have
to have a contract -- a general contractor's |icense, why
Is L& the one issuing citations here?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: So Mol eswort h
again. So we have a contractor conpliance section in

L&, and we have an electrical section in L& . Sonetines
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they can -- they can overl ap.
In this instance, we have an el ectrical inspect

enpl oyee doing the investigation, and he can cite t

or

hem

because they didn't have a general contractor's license.

So he can also cite themfor not having an

el ectrical license because they could have subcontr

act ed

I f they woul d have had an electrical Iicense. They could

have subcontracted if they had a contractor's |license --

or general contractor's |icense.

But since our staff was doing that inspection,
cited themfor -- for electrical instead of giving
referral to contractor conpliance.

So either entity inside L& has that authority
I ssue that citation for subcontractor, so --

BOARD MEMBER BURKE: Board Menber
Bur ke.

t hey

t hem a

to

So if I'munderstandi ng your question, where you're

going, | nean, it seens like it was inproper citati
under electrical, and it should have been referred

possibly a citation for general contractor, but --

on
and

but

that didn't happen. There's no citation for no general

contractor |icense.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: But it's not.

Either entity can issue a citation for not legally

subcontracting. W could issue it under electrical
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because it was an electrical installation.

They could issue it -- if they had cone on-site
t hey could have issued it for not having a general
contractor's |icense.

So either entity can -- can cite for illegal

subcontracting, right, and being -- having to be an

el ectrical contractor or a general contractor in order to

have that relationship.
BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Board Menber

Baker.

Then, | guess, what |aw -- what RCWwas broken in

the electrical departnment? Can you point ne to --
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Right. Do

have that, John?

you

MR BARNES: Yes, | do. There was
two. They were cited under RCW 19.28.041 for not having

the electrical contractor |icense, and under 19.28. 420,

and that's the tel econmunication -- not having a

t el econmuni cati ons contractor |icense.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Board Menber

Erick Lee?

BOARD MEMBER LEE: Yeah. Board Menber

Lee, L-e-e.

Wayne, | think there's a question for you, and I

t hi nk you m ght have touched on it earlier. So the
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el ectrical inspector saw the -- issued the citations,

went down the route through the L& departnent, and the

def ense coul d have -- could have been at that point,
"Well, hey, we have a general contracting |icense"?
That's -- but the electrical inspector didn't pursue it,

and the NCR didn't bring it up in defense.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: It coul d have
been. | don't know for a fact that the electrical
I nspector didn't ask himif they were a general
contractor.

BOARD MEMBER LEE: Thank you.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  And | don't
think -- Counsel, you can tell ne if they -- you've told
us that they're not a general contractor.

MR. FERN:. That's mny under st andi ng.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: But you can't
tell me if the inspector actually asked that -- asked
t hat questi on.

MR. FERN: There's nothing in the
record to show that he did. It's ny understanding that
he didn't.

| mean, these citations were nade, you know, as
M. Barnes said, not under general contracting statute
but under -- for failure to have an electrician |license,

not for failure to have a general contracting |license.
Page 55

,:A‘ Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N oo o B~ wWw DN PP

N NN N NN P P P PP PR PR R R
g N W N P O © 0 N O o M W N B O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Any board nenber
guestions?
BOARD MEMBER BAKER  Board Menber
Baker .
| -- | can't support those citations. | thank you
for the conversation and being able to understand where
It was comng from | understand that, but | can't
support those. |It's just contrary to how we do business
in the state and how we contract.
| believe it should have gone through the --
literally should have had a general contractor's |icense.
| would have liked to have seen this go to the other
departnent within L& .
Fromthe electrical side, it just is contrary to ny

40 years of experience in the industry and how we

function in this state and how we contract. |f these are
uphel d, |I've got a dozen jobs right now that are in
vi ol ati on.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So | --
Secretary Molesworth. | disagree with that just because
you're a general contractor, and you don't have anything
that's illegal.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: W are an
el ectrical contractor.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: What's that?
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Ch, you're an electrical contractor.

people |ike NCR that are not contractors, and they

the state of Washi ngton, very well known.

definition of the | aw

can't do, so they would have had to have been an
el ectrical contractor because they weren't able to

subcontract.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Peri od.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Yes. But to ny

point -- to ny point, Wayne, is, we are subcontracted by

be in violation, and these are well-known integrators in

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Right. By the
| aw and by this particular contract, they've gone into a

contract as an electrical contractor by law -- by the

So we're not interpreting this law. It's pretty
clear that -- that they've entered into a | egal binding
contract. It's specific to electrical installations in

the contract. They've decided to subcontract, which they

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: | wunder st and.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: | under st and.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Board Menber

BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox.
Question for Secretary Mdlesworth: [|f it had been

referred to the general contractor division with L&, how

woul d
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many citations would have been issued for failure to have
a general contractor's |license?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Probably --

MR BLOHOWAK: |'mjust going to --
that's -- that's way outside of the -- the record.

Li ke, you're asking the secretary to hypothesize
about what may or may not have happened in this. |It's
just not in the record.

And then also | just want to rem nd the board
menbers that your job here today is to deci de whet her
there's substantial evidence to support the findings of
fact and conclusions of lawin the OAH s order

And so as you're | ooking to make your decision, you
need to al so be considering the record you revi ewed and
what evi dence you're going to point to, to reverse,
nodi fy, or uphold each of those findings of fact and
concl usi ons of |aw.

So | just wanted to remind the board to -- the board
does not have any equitable authority to deci de whet her
or not sonmething is just or inappropriate.

The board is confined to the statutes and | aws
witten and the evidence in the record, and so you need
to -- as you're |looking to nake a decision today, just
remnd you to consider the record you reviewed confined

to findings of fact and concl usions of |aw and whet her
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there is substantial evidence to support -- support them
or support your conclusions to nodify or reverse.
CHAl RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you.

Any ot her questions, comments, concerns, board

menbers? Yes?
BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Thank you,

M. Chair. Board Menber Gay, Gr-a-y.

| struggled just like |I heard everybody el se, and |
read through all of this, and when | read the words in a
contract, I -- to ne, it would be a reach to believe that
that contract with NCR and Starbucks intended to identify
NCR as the contractor that was actually going to install
the el ectrical equipnent and do all that because they --
t hey' ve been doing this all over the country.

So | just never read that as, "W expect you to go
be the contractor to go install these things."

| read it as, "W expect you to go nmanage whatever
it is that will support your work, which is to provide
software for our conpany here, and you go do that. W're
paying you to go get that done."

So, I nean, I'm-- I"mright in the sane boat, |
t hi nk, as Board Menbers Baker and Burke and Cox on this.
| just -- | think if -- not disagreeing that a citation
probably shoul d have been assigned, but |I'mnot sure it

was assigned to the right place based on what |
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under st ood when | read through the transcripts and
ot her information.
Thank you, M. Chair.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you.
Any ot her questions, comments, concerns, board
menber s?
BOARD MEMBER LEE: | do. For th
Board Menber Lee, L-e-e.

For the folks that are in the sane boat and

t he

e--

struggling wwth this, on the -- in the record on Page 14,

It says, "The electrical statute defines an electr
contractor as any entity that offers to undertake,
undertakes, submts a bid for, or does the work."

|f they say they're going to manage it, does t
get themaway fromthis definition? They're not
submtting the bid for -- that's not the way that
seen or is that the way -- | nean, can you legally
away fromthat definition?

That's the part I"mstruggling with. Can you

convince ne of that?

i cal

hat

it's

ar gue

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Not w t hout

bringing in new information.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Board nenber --

sorry. Chair Jenkins.

In the actual docunent, they actually have a pricing

Page 60

,:A‘ Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N oo o B~ wWw DN PP

N NN N NN P P P PP PR PR R R
g N W N P O © 0 N O o M W N B O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

sheet show ng what it's going to cost to install

I ndi vi dual devices. So whether or not they're doing it
or not, that would tell nme that they have the LHL
contractor license to submt their bidding to do this
work at this price.

There are individual conponents in here.

(I naudi ble) for that and sone of it is electrical work.
Therefore, they're saying, "lI'ma general contractor.
|"m going to have an electrical contractor do this work,
but I"mmaking this bid to cover all the different
conmponents. "

There's an actual question sheet for each of these
in each individual step of this process. So whether or
not they intended to do it internally or external,
don't think it matters.

If they didn't want to do it internally and don't
have a license for it -- they also didn't have a general
contractor's license to even submt that type of bid, but
that's (inaudible) events, so --

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Board Menber
Baker .

Don't want to keep beating a dead horse. Don't want
to be that guy at the table, but | don't know. Maybe
t hey shoul d have had a general contractor's license. |'m

not here to decide that.
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But | can tell you that our general contractors wll
sit down wth our clients, and they have a spreadsheet
and they show them our pricing matrices. W provide
those to them and they sit down. They show them exactly
what it's going to cost and they show the el ectrical.

And, yes, they do conmt to the installation of the
el ectrical system Doesn't nean they're going to do it,
but they're commtting to it. They're taking
responsibility for it.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: | woul d propose
to take a short break, for a couple reasons. First of
all, | notice sonme nenbers here have requested to be able
to check out of their hotel roomin order to (inaudible).

| woul d suggest maybe a 15-m nute break and di scuss
the | egal steps here, what we can and can't do.

Any questions?

So we'll take a recess until 10: 30.

(Pause in the proceedings.)

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: All right. It
I's now 10:33 on April twenty-

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Sevent h.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  -- seventh.

Thank you. And we're bringing the Washi ngton State
El ectrical Board neeting back to order.

Al right. So after discussing our options here and
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| see our discussion has been tailing off and so our
options are, one, we can affirmthe order fromthe AH] to
reverse the order fromthe AHJ.

The ot her option we have, if we feel there is sone
type of -- nore information needed, we can renmand it back
to the OAH to suppl enent the proceedi ngs, get nore
I nformation on the electrical contractor versus general
contractor information.

So those are our options for noving forward. Yes?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Thank you,

M. Chair. Does that nean we could ask for nore evidence
to be entered into the record so that we could eval uate
that? |s that what that says?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yeah

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Hearing no nore
guestions/conments fromthe board, the chair would
entertain a notion.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER  Board Menber
Baker. 1'Il make a notion that we reverse the order.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  And we have a
notion. Do we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER BURKE: Board Menber
Burke. Second.

CHAlI RPERSON JENKINS: So we have a
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notion and a second. Any discussion? Hearing none,
all --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  The di scussi on
| woul d have is, based on what evidence are we reversing
it? Can | ask that question?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: So we have
di scussi on.

MR BLOHOW AK:  Yes. Yeah. | nean,
you can. It's a little out of order.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER.  So | woul d ask,
based on what evidence would we reverse this -- this
decision that's inside of our evidence package at this
poi nt ?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Wl |
(i naudible) nore information on this. W're all seeing
t he sanme thing.

Qur violation that we're tal king about is
(i naudi bl e) right out of the book. And this says
19.28.41, No. 1 is unlawful for any person, firm
partnership, corporation, or any other entity to advise,
offer to do work, submt a bid, engage in conduct, and
carry the business of installing or maintain wires or
equi pnment to convey electrical current or having --
under goi ng (i naudi bl e) and so forth.

So that's the section that they're applying this to.
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Any ot her discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of
reversing the AHJ's order, all signify by raising your
hand, pl ease.

W have, one, two, three, four, five, six in favor.

Qpposed? One, two, three.

Motion passes to -- to reverse the AHJ's orders.

(1 naudi bl e.)

One second. So, once again, the notion passes to
reverse the AH)'s proposed order, and we need to now
review the actual order to discuss the individual itens
we're reversing.

MR. BLOHOWN AK: So there were -- this
I s Ben Bl ohow ak.

There are two violations here, 19.28.041 and
19.28.420. One is for electrical installations. The
other one is for tel ecommunications installations.

The | anguage in each statute is identical, other
than the reference to electrical and tel ecommuni cati ons
instal lations.

And as Jason said, but I'll just reiterate, it is
unl awf ul for any person, firm partnership, corporation,
or other entity to advertise, offer to do work, submt a
bi d, engage in, conduct, or carry on the business of
installing or maintaining tel econmunications or

el ectrical systens w thout having a valid
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t el econmuni cations or electrical installation contractor
| i cense.

It is now-- |'d ask the board to point to specific
evidence in the record to -- to establish that those
viol ati ons have not occurred. W'IlIl need to cite to
specific parts of the record, and once we've identified
those portions of the record, | will ask counsel for the
appealing party -- for the failing party to draft a
proposed order.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: (| naudi bl e.)

MR, BLOHOW AK:  Yeah. So we're
| ooki ng at Section 6.2 and Section 6.3 of the proposed
order issued by the Ofice of Adm nistrative Hearings.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  So (i naudi bl e)
need to be changed to, "NCR Corporation did not violate
RCW 28. 41 by offering to perform submt, bid, or engage
i n business installing" (inaudible) so on and so forth,
and 6.3, where NCR did not violate RCW 28. 420.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  The evi dence in
t he docunents that | would point to, | believe, would be
statenment of facts under 4A. It states, "NCR contracted
with Starbucks to manage the installation of electrical
and tel ecommuni cati on equi pnent."

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Do you have a

specific page in the record you' re | ooking at?
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UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Ch, Lord.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: |'msorry. W
just have to nake sure that we're very clear what
evi dence we're relying on.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: It's a fair
guesti on.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Page 3.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Chai r Jenki ns.

You' re tal king about Page 3 of the electrical board
packet ?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: It's the
el ectrical board brief.

CHAl RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board bri ef.
The packet. Do you have a page nunber?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Page 3 of the
brief.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Ckay.

(1 naudi bl e) board brief. Thank you. Can you repeat what
you were asking or saying?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: It's -- it's
the statenent of facts under bullet point 4A. |t states,
"NCR contracted wth Starbucks to manage the
installations of electrical and tel ecommunication
equi prent . "

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Ckay. So if |
Page 67

MR, Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N oo o B~ wWw DN PP

N NN N NN P P P PP PR PR R R
g N W N P O © 0 N O o M W N B O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

get you right, you're saying nmanage versus offer, advise,
submt, bid, engage, conduct? You're saying that's
outside that -- the scope of the law? So using the word
"“manage" versus the others?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Correct.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: kay. So did
counsel get that information?

MR. BARNES: No. | --

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  So if |
understand this correctly, he's referring to the brief
where -- on Page 3 where NCR contracted wth Starbucks to
manage the installation of the tel econmunication
equi prent versus the code -- or the law requirenents that
do not violate that sinply because it -- managing i s not
advertised to do work, submt bid, engage in conduct --
and conduct business, so on and so forth (inaudible)

19. 20. 41.

MR. FERN: Al ex Fern, NCR Yeah.
have that. |'mnot sure what page of the appeal packet
"' m | ooking at.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Yeah. So --
and |"'msorry, Chair Chris Jenkins. \What Board Menber
Baker is referring to is the Departnent's brief filed in
t hi s case.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Ckay.
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UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: But | think --
and, Board Menber Baker, please correct ne if I'm wong,
but it's the |anguage that's used -- | think it's in --
also in the agreenment between NCR and Starbucks that
they're going to manage these installations.

So, Counsel, the citation you' re probably | ooking
for is to references to nmanagenent inside the -- the
evidentiary record (inaudible) Ofice of Adm nistrative
Hear i ngs.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: That sounds
reasonabl e.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: |s that your
under st andi ng?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Correct. Based
on that description, I'"'mconfident | can draft an
appropriate proposed order.

MR. BARNES:. | do have a question on
that. |s Menber Baker referring to nmy trial brief rather
t han the proposed order?

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Currently, yes,
that is what |'mreferring to at this nonent.

MR- BARNES: | don't think a brief is
evi denti ary.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  And,

M. Barnes, that's why | was asking M. Baker -- because
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he's not a trained attorney. |If -- if it's that |anguage
of project managenent was what he was relying on, | think
he was | ooking at your brief as a bit of a shortcut, but
your brief references project managenent in the actual

evi dentiary record.

So that's why |'ve indicated counsel and clarified
with the board nenber that that's his understandi ng and
that was his -- that was the evidence he was | ooking at,
was this | anguage of project nmanagenent versus the submt
a bid, engage in, conduct, or carry out the business of
el ectrical or telecomunications installation.

MR. BARNES:. | just have a point of
order because | don't want this com ng right back down
here again, but | think that it would necessarily have to
be something in the order that they found to be incorrect
rather than sonmething that | wote or sonebody wote in a
brief, which is not evidence.

And I'"'mafraid if we go up on appeal on this, that

it wll just get sent down for further findings.

MR. FERN:. Alex Fern, for NCR | may
be able to provide -- | just want to state ny
understanding just -- it's nmy understandi ng that, based

on the contract between NCR and Starbucks, NCR iIs
offering to nmanage the project.

It's not a violation of RCW19.28.041 to perform
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submt a bid, engage in the business of installing or
mai ntai ning electrical equipnent. And that's the board's
decision that would be reflected in the proposed order
pul led fromthe contract itself rather than the brief.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: This is Board
Menber Baker's notion. | would at |east counsel
(i naudi bl e) understandi ng correct?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: | under st and
you're trying to clean it up. |'mpulling sonething out
of a brief. W need to find it in the actual docunent.
Yeah. That's exactly what |'"'mtrying to do. Your
definition of a shortcut is very accurate, SO --

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber
Knot t i nghan?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  Board
Menmber Knottingham K-n-o-t-t-i-n-g-h-a-m

In the electrical board packet docunent, | think
it's referenced on Page 1554, project managenent. That's
Exhi bit A for services that NCR restore (inaudible)
provi de.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber
Chai r Jenkins.

The page nunber once agai n?

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM 1554, And
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t hen above it, it says (inaudible) Exhibit 2,
Page 000023.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: So nake sure |
say this correctly. Evidence that you're pointing to
that renoves the violation is shown -- also shown on
Page 1554 where they bring up project nmanagenent.

(I naudi bl e) the project shall (inaudible) project
managenent and support tasks. That is what you're
referring to for support for the change?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Correct.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Thank you. So
given that, (inaudible). That would apply to both the
violation of the 19.28.041 and viol ation of 19.28.420.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER:  Board Menber
Baker .

That's correct.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Ckay. Jason,

Chair .

Thank you very much. The board has nmade a deci si on.
M. Alex Fern, if you -- please do not |eave today until
you | et us know whether you'll need additional tinme or

reached an agreenent.
Pl ease be advised that, if you do not reach an
agreenent today, then that wll be automatically set for

presentnent at the next regularly schedul ed board
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nmeet i ng.

| f an agreed order has not been received by this
date, parties will be expected to file their proposed
orders, appear, and advise why their proposed orders are
there -- the proposed order best reflects the board's
deci sion. Hopefully this will not be necessary.

|f you're able to reach an agreenent as to the form
of the order by the next neeting, please forward the
secretary of the board's office, and they will neke sure
It gets signed and copies provided to the parties.

Thank you very nuch.

MR. BARNES:. Thank you.

MR. FERN. When you say "agreenents,"
you nean agreenent (inaudible) Ofice of the Attorney
General ?

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Yes. That is
correct.

MR. FERN. Just want to get that
confirmed.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  And neke sure

the order best reflects what the board's deci sion was

t oday.
MR. FERN:. Thank you.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very
much.
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VI P PRODUCTI ON NORTHWEST

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. So
nmoving on to the next item of the agenda, (inaudible)
time for a break.

Moving on to VIP Production Northwest, is there a
representative for the appellants for VIP Production?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yeabh.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: |If you can
pl ease take a seat.

And (inaudible) representation of the parties.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yes.

(I naudi bl e.)

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  Al'l right.
the matter for today is an appeal of a matter of the
VI P Production Northwest, Incorporated, Docket
Nos. 12-2019-L1-01240 and 12-2019-LI-1 -- 01241.

This hearing is being held -- being held pursuant
due to the proper notice of all interested parties at
Spokane, Washi ngton, on April 27th at approxi nmately
10:52 a. m

This is an appeal of the initial order offer --
initial order issued by the Ofice of Adm nistrative
Heari ngs on June 22nd, 2022. It is ny understanding
that the decision is affirmed. Citation notices

EALRDO0557, EBUJU00629, EBUJU00630, and EBUJUO063 [ sic]
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| ssued by the Departnment of Labor and I ndustries on
August 9th and 16th, 2019. It is further ny
under standi ng that the appellant has tinely appeal ed the
decision to electrical board.

Did you hear ny remarks to the previous procedure?

MR REIT: Yes.

M5. ZURLINI: Yes.

CHAl RPERSON JENKINS:  So we do not
need to go over those?

M5. ZURLINI: No.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Ckay. So any
questions before we begin?

MR REIT: No.

M5. ZURLI N : No.

CHAl RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. So
VI P Production's representative, please speak and spel
your nane for ne.

MR. REIT: | brought ny own nane tag
just to be sure you can read it. M nane is Troy,
T-r-o0-y. Last nane is Reit. It's spelled Re-i-t.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  You are the --

(i naudi bl e) party. You have the burden of proof to
establish the proposed decision is incorrect. Therefore,
we'll hear fromyou first, and you have 15 mnutes. You

may proceed.
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MR REIT: Thank you.

Menbers of the board, for society to work, every
citizen has to know and understand the rules. The only
reason we can drive -- safely drive (inaudible) cars on
the same road wth hundreds of other people is we all
know t he rul es, such as which side of the street to drive
on and what is expected at a red |ight.

| f one police district decides to issue tickets for
stopping at a red light while the rest of the country
continues to expect notorists to stop at the red lights,
It would be confusing for notorists and chaos woul d
ensue.

This is the situation we have in Washington State
right now There is significant confusion about how to
interpret the electrical laws as they apply to the
portabl e tenporary systens the entertai nnent industry
uses for small festivals, and it seens |ike the Spokane
L& office is like the police departnment that is issuing

tickets for stopping at red |ights.

Everywhere else in the state -- and we do hundreds
of shows all over -- we don't need a permt for the snmall
shows with just a fewlights, |like the ones in question

today. And only one permt is required for a bare wire
hookup, and that's usually pulled by the electrician

tying us in to power.
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| had an experienced inspector outside of Spokane
County call nme to ask who would be pulling the permt for
a showin his jurisdiction, and he verified that ny
conpany didn't need one because the client had hired an
el ectrician.

However, within the Spokane County and specifically
at the show we did in Airway Heights, Inspector Busskoh
required the City to have a permt for their generator
and spider box. VIP had to have a permt for our |ights.
The audi o conpany needed a permt, and every band that
pl ayed on stage needed a permt to plug in their power
strips.

The inspectors are comng to very different
concl usi ons when interpreting the exact sane |aws. Wen
| try to pull a permt outside of the Spokane office's
jurisdiction, the inspectors |look at ne like |I'mcrazy.

The i nspectors al so seemto be confused about the
equi pmrent we use. They're referred to a conputer as a
di mrer and think that DMX cable can't be classified as
t el ecommuni cations cabl e even though the D in DMX stands
for digital.

And the ANSI standard clearly states that DWW
comuni cates with packets of information. RCW 19.28. 400,
Par agraph 13A, states that data cable is

t el ecommuni cati ons cabl e.
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And we can install -- and | use that term | oosely
because that would -- | would consider that nore for
buildings -- up to ten tel ecommuni cations outlets w thout

needing a permt.

The i nspectors are | ooking at the wong | aw because
t hey don't know anythi ng about the entertai nnent cables
we use. For exanple, the speaker wire behind ne would be
a local dig- -- comunication cable, local digit control
circuit, but DM is nore |like the Ethernet cable that you
use in your conputers.

It's not just the inspectors. W did the exact sane
show in Airway Heights both in 2018 and 2019 with the
same equi pnent in the sane |ocation and with the sanme
power sour ce.

W were cited by the sanme inspector for the sane
I nfraction for both shows, and chall enged them both. W
have two hearings, and two different judges canme to
opposi te concl usi ons when presented with the sane
evi dence.

| tend to be a little idealogical. |In the hearing
for the 2018 show, | was |ooking for a decision to set a
precedence so that we could all know whether or not |
really needed a permt for these small shows. Apparently
It doesn't work that way.

|"mnot an attorney, just in case you were
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wondering. |'mthe CEO of the conpany. Here's the
problem | need to know what | am expected to do with
two conpletely different interpretations being applied,
dependi ng on where we set up our shows.

| am sincerely hoping that this body is able to
provide that kind of clarification, not only for nme but
also for the local L& office that seens to be using a
different interpretation than the rest of the state.

The m ssion of the Departnent of Labor and
I ndustries is to keep Washi ngton safe and worki ng. How
does it nmake the event safer to require the city, the
| i ghting conpany, the audi o conpany, and every band that
perforns on stage to require a permt -- to purchase a
permt?

If it's about safety and those permts are really
that critical, why didn't either inspector involved in
these citations also issue citations to the audio
provi der and the bands?

| n Medi cal Lake, the audio systemwas present and
pl ugged in when I nspector Alred was there, yet he never
even tal ked to that conpany. | asked the owner. The
sanme festival happened again last fall like it was done
every year other than during COVID, but no inspector
showed up. No permits were purchased, and no citations

wer e i ssued.
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How is it about safety when we need a permt to plug
inafewlisted LED lighting fixtures into a single G-Cl
protected outlet per the manufacturer's instruction? For
an agency that is funded by permts and citations, that
| ooks a little suspicious.

Don't get nme wong. M conpany is all about safety
in the entertai nnment industry. W regularly utilize
| arge anobunts of power, hang things over people's heads,
and install permanent systens.

| personally have directed many (i naudi bl e)
under st andi ng of what the |law requires and recently wote
a bl og encouraging our clients to get permts when
required as a matter of safety.

' m not asking you to rel ease the entertainnent
i ndustry to its own devices. You can find ny specific
argunments in nmy brief regarding the citations and
Ms. Zurlini's responses to ny appeal, so | won't spend
much time on them here.

However, the crux of the matter can be sunmed up in
this one question: D d the inspectors in the Spokane
office get a little overzealous in their interpretation
of the rules, or is this trend going to continue to the
point that the whole state is going to be held to a
di fferent standard of enforcenent where, according to

| nspect or Busskohl and the Spokane office, every power
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strip outside of a residence requires a permt before you
plug it in?

|*"msure the right answer or maybe the safe answer
| i es somewhere in between, that no one knows where that
line actually is. Are the local inspectors correct?
That woul d nean that the rest of the state is wong.

By the way, this conplex setup in this roomis nore
conpl ex than the systemthat we use to plug in a few
lights, and it uses power strips. So | didn't see a
permt posted in this room This is definitely not a
residence, so by their interpretation, this installation
woul d have required a permt.

The only law they can cite to support their
citations is a Currents newsletter article, and when the
author of the article, then Chief Inspector Thornton,
found out about the -- about Inspector Busskohl's
statenments about power strips, he said -- and | quote --
Oh, he shouldn't have said that, end quote.

Seens fairly clear to me who was m staken. The
other two citations regarding failing to request
I nspection and material m srepresentation are easily
explained. Wthout clear direction, | hastily procured a
permt for Airway Heights to attenpt to conply while

awaiting a verdict regarding the 2018 show.

In ny haste, | accidentally put accurate information
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into the website form like |I have done for every permt
as the 06 admn for ny conpany. To purchase a permt for

tenmporary lighting at a location | don't own, you have to

commt perjury -- and it says it right there on the
website. "I certify under penalty of perjury that this
information is true and correct” -- by claimng to be the

real property owner.

The | egal definition of m srepresentation requires
intent to deceive, which did not exist. That one is
pretty clear. The L& office schedule doesn't track well
with the entertai nnent industry, which works nostly
weekends. So without the advanced notice, we couldn't
call for inspection until the date after all the
equi pnment had been renoved.

|"'msure Ms. Zurlini will assert that |I'mthe one
that's confused, and maybe I am when it cones to this
doubl e standard of rule interpretation, but |'ve clearly
denonstrated that the inspectors are confused about the
application of the | aw and, even by their own adm ssion,
don't understand the equi pnent we use.

It would be unjust to hold nmy conpany accountable
for the inspectors' confusion and double standard. | am
asking this body to reverse these citations and affirm
that the inspectors overstepped the intent of the | aw

If you affirmthese citations, it |eaves ny conpany
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wi th an undue burden of having to navigate the double
standard. W don't know when to stop at the red |ight.
And indulge me for just a nonent longer. This
doesn't actually pertain to this case, but beyond these
citations, |I'malso asking that you work with the chief
I nspector in your |egal advisory role to provide sone
clarity regarding the application of the law to these
tenporary entertai nment systens. The Spokane County
I nspectors and ny industry needs these answers.
Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very
much.

AAG Ms. Zurlini.

M5. ZURLINI: Yes.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Can you spel
your nane for the recording, and at that point, you may
go forward.

M5. ZURLINI: Thank you. M nane is
Angela Zurlini. |1'mthe assistant attorney general who
represents the Departnent in this case. MW first name is
A-n-g-e-l1-a. M last name is Zurlini, whichis
Z-u-r-l-i-n-i.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you.

M5. ZURLINI: Thanks. So I'mgoing to

start off by saying, there isn't any confusion. Maybe
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the confusion rests with VIP and its interpretation of

the law, but | would objectively say there is no

conf usi on.
This isn't about power strips. |It's not about the
el ectrical Currents argunent -- or article, and it's al so

not about overzeal ous inspectors. W have Depart nent
I nspectors who go out every single day, |ooking for
el ectrical violations, and that's what we found with VIP.

To sinplify and reduce this whole case to power
strips and the electrical Currents newsletter is
reductive, and that's not what we're here today to
di scuss.

So VIP -- it focuses on light fixtures and di nmers
and DMX cabl es and the confusi on about what is neant by
the word "distribution,” so | thought we would start
t here.

Al'l the pictures |I'mshowi ng you are in the board
record, and if you at any point need ne to cite to where
it's at, just let me know.

Distribution of power. So this is the Mudical
Lake -- right? Medical Lake? Yes -- the Blue Waters
Bl uegrass Festival, which |'mjust going to call the
festival because that's a nouthful.

So at the Medical Lake festival, you have -- and

these are pictures taken by the inspector. You have the
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permanent utility -- or fixture right there, bringing
power in fromthe utility, and | know you guys obvi ously
know about this nore than | do.

Ckay. So power comng in, being distributed to a
circuit panel with circuits that were on, going down to
di stributing power to the GFCl's, okay, going through what
M. Reit testified about as being their Socapex cable
where you can see on this side, all the cables that are
comng out. And this is in the testinony as well.

Al'l of these cables com ng out of these GFCls are
t hen bundl ed together in the Socapex, which then is
t hreaded across the festival grounds where then it is
br oken apart.

Al'l the cabl es obviously break | oose, and that's how
they're powering -- distributing power fromthat primry
source all the way across the festival grounds to the
stage to provide electricity to all of the different
devices that M. Reit has referred to.

And there are nunerous pictures of the sane. At the
Airway Heights location, the same -- now this -- here,
instead of it being a permanent utility fixture, it was
two generators that the Gty brought and sane deal,
bringing power to -- fromthe generators to the stage.
So we' ve got the sane pictures.

| want to -- and |'msure you read this in the
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transcript, but M. Reit, he did confirmthat the
configuration used at the Medical Lake location is the
same configuration that it used at the Airway Heights
| ocation. So we're tal king about the sanme configuration.
On Pages 145 and 146 of the board transcript,
M. Reit says in Medical Lake -- keeping in mnd, again,
sanme configuration, both locations -- "In Medical Lake we
used a cable called a Socapex cable. A Socapex cable is
mul tiple cables conbined into one. So stagehands are
lazy. We try to do everything as quickly and efficiently
as possibly -- oh, as we possibly can. So if we can pul
one cable, even though it's really heavy, instead of
pulling six, we're going to do that -- we're going to do
it that way.
"VIP typically uses that in place of running
mul ti pl e extension cords because" -- or excuse ne --
"which can often cause nore of a tripping hazard because

a bigger cable is easier to see and nultiple cables are

not . "

That's distribution of power. GCkay. |If you read in
VIP's brief submtted to this tribunal -- let's see
here -- he says, "The general consensus between

entertai nment professionals and inspectors is a permt is
requi red when there is a high anperage" -- let's go

back -- "a high anperage connection to an electrical
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service that is then broken" -- sorry. |'mgoing through
t hese kind of fast -- "broken into nultiple |ower
anperage branch circuits. The dictionary definition of
distribution fits this idea, taking a | arge portion and
breaking it into smaller pieces for nultiple recipients.”

| woul d argue VIP absolutely knows what distribution
means. You can't describe sonething and then claim
confusion over what you just described. So | believe it
does know what distribution neans.

Respectfully, VIPis -- wants you to focus on the
dimers and the light fixtures and the DMX, which we'll
get to in a nonment, and confusion over whether or not the
| aw applies to those devi ces.

Respectfully, there shouldn't be any confusion over
the distribution -- how the electrical |laws are applied
to the distribution of power fromthat main utility or
t he generator through that Socapex cabl e breaking apart
at the stage.

Ckay. That should be clear, and that is the
violation. Wuen it cones to both of the -- all of these
citations, that's the violation. The dinmers and the
light fixtures and the DMX, like | said, we'll talk about

here, but those are additional violations, but on the

grounds al one of the distribution of power, | would ask
that the board affirmthe proposed decision -- or | think
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it's an initial order on appeal.

Moving briefly to those other devices -- let's see
here -- we'll start with the light fixtures and the DWX
cables. So -- and, again, these are all -- this is all
I n your board packet.

Soin VIPs brief to you, they say basically the
light fixtures have proprietary interconnecting cables
built into themthat cannot be used by other devices.
The power passes through each fixture to the next, but,
quot e, pass through, end quote, doesn't fit the vague
definition of distribution in the April 2017 Currents
newsl etter.

So if you go to that Currents newsletter, when it
speaks about the interconnecting cable, it says, "A
permt and inspection is required for any type of
tenporary distribution, a power distribution system A
di stribution system neans interconnecting wres or other
equi pnrent that is installed to distribute power."

That is what that is. And in support of that, their
Exhibit A this is the diagramthat VIP offered at the
time of hearing, and this is what shows you the
I nterconnecting cables. Again, you can't descri be
sonet hi ng and then cl ai mconfusion over what you just
descri bed.

So to use that phrase, the power passes through each
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fixture, in plain speak, that's distribution.

Moving now to the DMX cable -- so I'mgoing to
confuse nyself. Okay. So the DMX cable, VIP argues that
t he judge and inspectors are in error, calling DMX cable
a lighting control cable or a | ow voltage control cable.
Again, this is fromVIP' s exhibits. This is from-- this
Is the -- | guess the DMX cable that they identify on
their Exhibit A

Controlling lighting equi prent and accessories. |t
says it right there, "Controlling lighting and
accessories." So maybe the DMX cable can do a bunch of
different things, but at m ninumwe know it can control
the |ighting equi pnent.

So when VIP asks for the board to find that it is
exenpt, that DMX cable is exenpt under a
t el ecommuni cations | aw, which, in support of our
position, the Departnent argues that
Subsection 19.28. 400, Subsection 13C, under this, it
says, "Tel ecomuni cations systens do not include Iighting
or control systens -- lighting or control systens."

VIP argues that this listing of different pieces or
different devices refers -- and everyone knows it just
refers to anal og, and that what he's tal ki ng about or
what it's tal king about is digital.

Yet the | aw doesn't distinguish between anal og and
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digital. It just says lighting -- or lighting control
systens do not constitute tel ecomrunicati ons.

So in support of VIP, they offer 13A, which tal ks
about tel ecommuni cation systens include and then talks
about sone things, but it also says with or wwthin -- or
within or between buildings including voice, data, video,
and audio. That's not what we're tal ki ng about here.
We're tal king about festival and event grounds.

And then finally, when it cones to perjury, and at
the time of hearing, M. Reit and | just agreed to
di sagree on that, but what | would point out is, if you
| ook at board packet Page 249, this is an exanple of a
permt that VIP properly took out with VIP identified as
t he purchaser.

They identified thensel ves as the site owner
because, if you ook at the Electrical Currents, it talks
about, if you own your own equi pnment, then you use
your -- you are the site, | guess. So this is an exanple
of how they got it right.

When it comes to the -- the citation for the
material msrepresentation, first of all, intent is not a
factor. What M. Reit testified to was, he was in a
hurry. The inspectors had al ready been out, had already
seen the site.

They had already put the lights up. They had not
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obt ai ned an electrical work permt, and in a hurry, this
is the permt he pulled. So the idea that he had to
perjure hinmself, I'mnot exactly sure what that neans,
but what | can tell you is that VIP knew how to pull a
proper permt. They've been doing it for 30 years.

Ri ght ?

So he testify -- I"'msorry. M. Reit testified that
he was in a hurry and he acted in haste, and that's why
he put the Cty of Airway Hei ghts down instead of VIP,
whi ch, under the law, he was required to identify.

Let's see here. So | guess, in conclusion, VIP was
properly cited at both |ocations, at both the Medi cal
Lake and Airway Heights |ocations. They did not obtain
an electrical work permt as required by the law. Again,
goi ng back to the distribution of power, | nean, if you
just focus on that alone, the citations should be
affirnmed.

So at both locations, VIP did not obtain an
electrical work permt prior to starting that electrical
work, did not obtain an inspection at the Airway Heights
installation, and nmade a material or false statenent on a
permt.

In its appeal, VIP assigns error to conclusions of
law 5.1, 5.15, and 5.16. The remaining findings of fact

and concl usi ons of [ aw are unchal | enged.
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As discussed in the Departnent's briefing, the
errors assigned to conclusions of law 5.11, 5.15, and
5.16 do not change the fact the violations occurred. VIP
did not neet its burden to prove that the June 22nd,

2022, initial order is incorrect, and for that reason,
woul d ask that this board affirmthat initial order.
Thank you.

CHAl RPERSON JENKINS: Al right.
Thank you very nmuch. This is chair -- Board Menber
Jason.

Any questions fromthe board? Yes, Board Menber
Cox?

BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox,
C o- X.

For the appellant, on the Socapex cable, is there an
el ectrical plug on one end of that cable that would plug
into an individual 120-volt electrical outlet, and on the
ot her end of the cable, you would have -- on the opposite
end of that connection, would you have 120-volt
el ectrical receptacle or -- yeah, on the end of the cable
on that Socapex cabl e?

MR REIT: Yes.
BOARD MEMBER COX: Does that nake
sense?

MR REIT: Yep.
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BOARD MEMBER COX:  (Ckay.

MR REIT: (lnaudible) think of it as
a glorified extension cable.

BOARD MEMBER COX: Ckay.

MR. REIT. There's six of them bound
t oget her.

BOARD MEMBER COX: Six into one?

MR REIT: Right.

BOARD MEMBER COX: (Ckay. So if | have
the first connector on the end that plugs into the G-Cl,
and | have -- and that would correspond to the receptacle
at the other end of the cord as No. 1, and No. 2 would
plug into the second G-CI, and you'd have the No. 2 -- so
" munderstanding it, it's just -- it's six extension
cabl es in one encl osure?

MR. REIT: Correct.

BOARD MEMBER COX: So as not to cause
a trip hazard?

MR REIT: Correct.

BOARD MEMBER COX: Thank you

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Any ot her
guestions or comments fromthe board? Jason, Chair.

BOARD MEMBER CUNNI NGHAM  Board Menber
Cunni ngham GC-u-n-n-i-n-g-h-a-m

| didn't find a specific -- and maybe you can poi nt
Page 93
fiff, Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N oo o B~ wWw DN PP

N NN N NN P P P PP PR PR R R
g N W N P O © 0 N O o M W N B O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

me to it -- a specific reference to a WAC article that
pertains to tenporary -- |like a portable show, portable
installation, tenporary installations, and seens |ike al
this equipment -- and | actually have experience in this
i ndustry -- is all nodul ar connecti ons.

And typically the only place that |I've seen in the
I nspection perforned is where the -- where an
electrician, who is a licensed electrician, is making
connections froma distribution rack where there's
anplifiers and lots of (inaudible) protection to, you
know, house nmi ns.

And so what |' munderstanding by this case, every
stagehand that runs, you know -- that brings big boxes
off the truck, they unload thousands and thousands of
feet of cable, they're all supposed to be qualified trade
| abor in the state?

M5. ZURLINI: | would argue that's not
in the record. That's not a question that we addressed.

BOARD MEMBER CUNNI NGHAM  Ckay. And
so a permt has to be pulled for every -- what about when
you're bringing in trusses preloaded with lighting
fixtures? |s that -- those are -- those are constructed
sonmewhere el se out of state.

M5. ZURLINI: Again, not part of this

record. The only thing that's part of this record is
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basically what M. Reit and | have di scussed.

BOARD MEMBER CUNNI NGHAM  Ckay. So
installing -- installing cables froma |isted piece of
equi pment to other listed devices is interpreted as
distribution and requires a permt?

M5. ZURLINI: Also maybe -- and
because | don't speak electrical, that is also not a
topic that we discussed. What we di scussed was the
source of the power and then basically the distribution
of power fromthere, how it was distributed, then across
the event space and where it ended was at the stage.

So any --

BOARD MEMBER CUNNI NGHAM  |s this
being -- is this being enforced consistently across the
entire state?

M5. ZURLINI: There wasn't any
evidence to say that it was or wasn't or isn't. So |
woul d say, in general, M. Reit, when he's speaking in
broad generalities, this is what the industry thinks or
this is where the confusion lies, there's no evidence to
support any of that.

| mean, that is his opinion, which, you know, he is
able to share, but there's no factual basis for confusion
in his trade.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Any ot her
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questions from board nenbers? Yes?

BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox

agai n.

And | don't know if this mght be for Chief
Mol esworth. |If the appellant would have installed six
separate extension cords that woul d have plugged into the
I ndi vidual GFCls at the panel and ran those individually
to the stage and plugged his equi prent in, would that
have been consi dered distribution?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Well, that's
kind of irrelevant in this case because it wasn't.

Right? So | don't want to get into a discussion of
what-if. It's irrelevant because that wasn't what
happened in this particular instance.

BOARD MEMBER COX: (Ckay. Because the
position I'mtaking on this is that the Socapex cable is
simply a connector to plug extension cord, and so if -- a
bundl e under one sheet. |It's not distributing power.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Well, it still
di stributes power, but it's a different wiring nmethod
t han probably what you're -- what you're thinking of for
a distribution of power. It's one nore different type of
Wi ring nethod they can use to distribute power.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Chair Jason

Jenki ns.
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One thing that kind of got ny attention was the --
we | ooked on the Exhibit A on the one she brought up that
has the (inaudible) diagramand the |light fixtures.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Chai r man
Jenkins, could -- excuse nme. Could you give ne a page
nunber, please?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Page nunber for
this is Page 211.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: (I naudi bl e.)

And if | understand it correctly, the residenti al
pl ug-in appliances are conpletely exenpt frompermt,
conpletely exenpt. So there's no questions about those.
This is not a residential application.

So had this been a one outlet plug-in, one fixture,
|'d say, yeah, no permt required. |It's done.

(1 naudi bl e.)

But going fromone outlet to the fixture to fixture
to fixture to fixture on top of that, if you scrol
t hrough a couple nore pages, get to Page 312, right now,

there's a picture of one of the DMX controlled |ight

fixtures.
You'l | see that the light fixture itself has a
connecter on the back. It goes up as a short stud

connector, and it goes to a connection, and then it
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connects back into another one. So there's literally two
cables there, the bare m ninumthat connect two fixtures
t oget her .

To connect any di stance between the fixtures, you
have to have an adapter. You have an extension cord,
basi cally how far you want to go, back to a connector,
back into the light fixture.

And if (inaudible) process, it's the sane thing.
They put an adapter in. They put an extension cable.
They put an adapter back in the [ight fixture.

This is not a single plug-in device. This is a
mul tiple device. And then the argunent about, well, this
is alisted device. Well, it's listed to have one or ten
devi ces. Choose the way you want to set up. So it's not
a single listed device.

| f you | ook on Page, noving down further, 327, they
have the devices thenselves. So individual bought,
purchased the -- it's not a single device. It's a
system

So they're putting in a lighting system and so

that, to ne, is distributing fromfixture to fixture to

fixture. It would fall under the distributor options, in
nmy opi ni on.
The cable itself going fromthe cable back to a
three -- six extension cords out of one cord, back to
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three cords, | don't know | don't knowif you want to
call it distribution because they're not buying the

i ndividual circuits. W're just pulling all the cables
I nto one.

Bi gger picture on this -- and I know it mght be
nmore opi nion than anything el se, should there be a permt
pul led? | agree 100 percent permt should be pulled on
every one of these.

You' re tal king about public access, wal ki ng over
t hese cabl es and these cables (inaudible) to be exposed.
If you look at the -- alnost all the pictures show these
bundl es of cables wapped up around different areas.
They have these cabl es going across a wal ki ng space.

Shoul d they be permtted? | 100 percent agree they
all should be. They all should be | ooked at. And where
the defining point is distribution, well, it's
di stribution going light fixture to light fixture,
speci al conductors and cabl es, disconnecting, connecting.

| don't think it should be unpermtted based upon it
Is a distribution of lighting. And | |ooked up this
docunentation that's a forty -- I'mreally famliar with
t he conputer cables -- conputer cables being a 46
t echnol ogy, which is the sane basic technol ogy they use
for their -- super basic conputer cables except it's

bei ng used for lighting control.
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If it's being used for lighting control, | would
agree with Ms. Zurlini. (Ilnaudible) option that exenpts
lighting control. That cable cannot be used as an
exenption because honestly | think -- and | guess
M. Ml eswrth can correct nme on this, but | believe that
whol e extension system was based upon the computer
| ocation, (inaudible) conputer required full permt to
put jacks to your conputer to your phone systemto those
little patch ports that are exenpt. This is a very
specialized application. So I'min agreeance with the
State's position.

Any ot her questions fromthe board? Coments?

BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox.

|"mnot sure who this question needs to go to. It

m ght be to Chief Mdlesworth. But are not plug -- I'm
tal king about the DMX. The data connections, is not plug
and cord or cord and plug connections exenpt from
permtting or is that only exenpt fromlicensing?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So it depends
on what kind of cord and plug you got.

BOARD MEMBER COX: (Ckay.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  In this case,

it wouldn't be exenpt because it's a different type of --

it's not a -- it's not the appliance cord. It's not the
extension cord. It's -- you know, this is a -- a cable
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that's used to interconnect if we're tal king about the

same - -
BOARD MEMBER COX: DMX, yeah. It's --
it's a mal e-femal e connector, click. It |locks in.
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Yeah
BOARD MEMBER COX: So that woul d not
be -- okay. | guess |'m not understandi ng why that

woul dn' t be.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Not for this
type of equipnent, not for this type of application.

BOARD MEMBER COX: |s there an RCWor
WAC that addresses the difference between one application
and anot her on whether it's a cord or plug connected
system - -

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  There woul d be.
| can't give you that right off the top of ny head, but
there is sonme definition and sone expl anation around
t hat .

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Any nore
di scussion fromthe board? Yes?

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  Board
Menber Knotti ngham

I f you look at (inaudible). |If you |ook at Page 227

in the board packet -- and | believe this was submtted
by VIP -- it tal ks about ESDA standards and the Anerican
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Nat i onal Standards and entertai nnment technol ogy

references. Again, this is 512.

You go on to the next page under scope, standard

describes (inaudible) digital -- data transm ss
bet ween controllers. Controlled equipnent is d
in C ause 194.

So | think clearly it's electronic. It's -
data that -- | nmean, clearly it's defined as co
which is exenpted. Permts are required. That
under st andi ng.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  Thank vy

Chair Jason, once again.

i on

escri bed

- it's
ntroll ed,

1 S rry

Oou.

Any ot her questions, concerns? |f not, chair would

entertain a notion.
BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  Bo

Menmber Knotti ngham
| make a notion that we affirmthe citation
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: W have

notion. Do we have a second?

ar d

S.

a

BOARD MEMBER NORD: Board Menber Nord.

Second.
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: W have a
notion. W have a second. Any discussion?
Hearing none, all in favor of affirm ng the QAH
decision, signify by raising your hand. Four, five, siXx.
Page 102
B cavitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N oo o B~ wWw DN PP

N NN N NN P P P PP PR PR R R
g N W N P O © 0 N O o M W N B O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

Opposed? Two.
Motion passes. So -- yes?
BOARD MEMBER BAKER  Board Menber

Baker .

|"d just like to make a coment. M. Reit asked
the -- actually hoped that this board will provide sone
clarification. | believe he has -- |'ve dealt wth the

sane frustration across the state with different
jurisdictions not interpreting the codes and specifically
wth low (inaudible) tests in the past where | woul d get
one inspector cone out and not know what he's inspecting.
Anot her jurisdiction would tell ne they don't need a
permt.

And | do believe that M. Reit and anybody el se
that's a stakeholder in the industry deserves to have
some clarification and possibly some training across the
state so we're consistent in how we're dealing with our
st akehol ders.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  So |'m hearing
that -- Chair Jason.

' m hearing the suggestion to the division to get
nore training and i nformation out concerning

i nstallations (inaudible) in this capacity?

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Yes. |'mcurious
what an inspector would | ook at when he | ooked at that
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site. | believe our stakehol ders need to know what the
I nspectors are going to be |Iooking at when they cone out
to the site as well.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very
much. Al right. WlI, thank you very nuch. Board has
made its deci sion.

Ms. Zurlini -- Ms. AAG Zurlini, have you prepared a
proposed order?

M5. ZURLINI: | have.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. |
woul d i ke the parties to adjourn to the | obby to see if
the ternms of the order can be agreed upon. Please do not
| eave today if you -- until you have let us know if
you'll need additional time or have reached an agreenent.

Pl ease be advised that if you do not reach an

agreenent today, then that will be -- automatically be
sent for presentnent at the regularly next -- the regular
schedul ed -- next reqularly schedul ed board neeting.

| f an agreed order has not been received by that
date, the parties will be expected to file their proposed
orders, appeal, and advise what proposed order best
reflects the board's decision. Hopefully that's not
necessary.

If You're able to reach an agreenent as to the form

of the order be- -- or before the next neeting, please
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forward it to the secretary of the board office, and they
w || ensure signed copies are provided to the parties.
Any questions?
M5. ZURLIN: No.
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right.
Thank you very nuch.
Do the board nenbers -- take a break? Are we good?
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Br eak
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Break. Al
right. So let's do that. Let's take a ten-m nute
break-ish, and let's get back here at 20 till
(i naudi ble). Back here at 11:40.

CAVALI ER CORPORATI ON

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. So
the next itemon our list here is the appeal from
Caval i er Corporation on (inaudible) representation we
have later. |'msorry?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: That's correct.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Yeah.
(1 naudi bl e) corporation.

And we have Ms. Zurlini. |'massumng you' re the

representation for the departnent?

MS. ZURLINI: | am

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Ckay. The
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matter before us today is an appeal of the matter of the
Caval i er Corporation, Docket Nos. 05-2020-LI-01434 and
05-2020- LI -01435. The hearing is being held pursuant to
due and proper notice to all interested parties in
Spokane, Washington, on April 27, 2023, at approximtely
11: 47.

This appeal initial -- this is an appeal with
initial order issued by the Ofice of Admnistrative
Hearings on July 27th, 2022. It is ny understandi ng that
t he decision was affirmed. G tation notices EALRDO0738,
EALRDO0739, and EALRDO0O740 issued by the Departnent of
Labor and I ndustries on January 30th, 2020.

It is further nmy understanding that the appell ant
has tinely appeal ed that decision to the electrical
board.

Did you hear ny procedures from before?

MR. RIDDLE: Yes, sir, | did.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Ckay. Any
guestions before we begin?

MR RIDDLE: No. No.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Ckay. As the
appealing party, you have the burden of proof to
establish that the proposed decision is incorrect.
Therefore, we'll hear fromyou first.

So if you could please spell your nane for the
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recording, and then we can nove forward.

MR RIDDLE: M nanme is Warren Riddle.
It's spelled Wa-r-r-e-n. R ddle is Ri-d-d-1-e, kind of
|ike a joke. |'macconpanied by fellow officer in the
corporation, nmy lovely wife of 57 years. And | guess
"1l nmention she's an officer in the corporation also.

Do you want nme to proceed?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Yes. Pl ease
proceed.

MR RIDDLE: W're not really ready to
be here, and at -- we were prom sed a transcript from OAH
in electronic form and we never received it. W've
witten OAH about it, and they were not responsive to us.

Al so, when | sent ny closing argunents, witten
argunents, | did not get a certified mail receipt from
them | just assuned that -- that the -- | just assuned
that the office of OAHis in disarray after the COVID
t hing or sonething of that nature.

| really don't have know edge of that except what
|"ve already verbalized. | didn't get a transcript, and
| did not get a receipt fromthe (inaudible).

This case kind of remi nds ne of an anal ogy or
(inaudible) -- I"'mgoing to nmake this short, so | hope
" mnot off the subject -- where sone John Doe -- this is

an anal ogy. Sonme John Doe is running a security firm
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and the cop down the street fromhimdoesn't Iike -- he
sets up a -- he -- the cop sets up a canera, speed
canmera, and at the end of the year, he brings -- presents

200 tickets to this guy in this anal ogy.

Ckay. If -- we haven't received -- Cavalier
Corporation or ne, as the adm nistrator of Cavalier
Corporation -- Cavalier, I will nmention, is a general
contractor and also an electrical contractor, an 01
el ectrical contractor. Not by choice. W've been told
we need to do this. W' ve been told by the Departnent
t hese radon systens need permts.

Ckay. So we take out permts for them Ckay. And
| synpat hize when the earlier testinony -- one of the
gentl enen said, you know, "The law is not applied
evenly,"” this and that.

But, you know, in my opinion, when | install a
passi ve radon systemthat has no fan and has no
el ectrical conponents and it has no electrical |eads
going intoit, I still buy a permt because sone of the
I nspectors want to know where all these radon systens
are.

Ckay. So going on here, | draw your attention to

t he WACs because this has become an issue, and |'d |ike

to hear a response fromny opponent over here. In the
WAC 296-46B-915(12)(d), the prescription -- |I'll pause --
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Is the prescription for penalties of fees.

My version of the WAC says that a fee for
adm ni strator not properly overseeing on a B permt is
$100. This was discussed in the OQAH. | don't know why.
To ne, it's fraudulent if the AGwants to -- to break the
| aw and chooses to break the | aw

W feel thisis -- is simlar or the sane as the
doctrine that (inaudible) has. | don't think that the
attorney general and the Departnent can cone in here and
say, "We're choosing to break the | aw here. Gosh, you
know, we're going to hold your feet to the fire."

| don't think you can get the Superior Court to

agree with you guys on that.

So | want you guys to -- and |'lIl wap this up here
in just a nonent -- to consider, when John Doe calls ny
office -- and keep in mnd also, it's a statutory thing.

I n Spokane County, every new house with a residence or
even a business with a residence, every new residenti al
house gets a radon pipe, and you can't get past it.

Oten people will be calling our office and saying
this, "Gee, | have high radon readings. Can | activate
ny passive radon systenf"

The passive radon system as | nmentioned earlier, is
ABS pi ping, you know, a pit, a roof jack, sone things of

this nature.
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So we go to the house there, and there's a dupl ex
receptacle there right next to it because it's statutory
in the National Electric Code. W say to people and it
says to us, if we're planning on having electrical
devices in the attic, we put a duplex there. |It's
reflected in the Washi ngton energy code that deals with
radon. It shows a diagramwth a (inaudible), a plug-in,
a receptacle for future plug in of a radon fan so the
honmeowner can go up there and put his radon fan in.

I n other words, he gets on Amazon. He goes up there
into his attic, severs the pipe, bolts the fan in place
with the (inaudible) antivibration rubber cufflinks and
so forth. He plugs in. He's done.

Ckay. So we're out here. W're taking out permts.
Whose nanme do | put on -- if it's a permt for a passage
systen? Do | put on the guy who glued the pipes
together? The guy who did the roof jack? The guy that

Di anondcord the hole through the floor -- the cenent
sl ab?
So if we had sone permts out there -- we, Cavalier,

t hat have various nanes on them of whoever is there --
okay. My question to you would be, is, say I'min a
commercial building and |'mactivating a fan. Do | need
an 01 electrician to put this plug-in in? Can John Doe

put this plug in?
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The question is, is there a violation or not?

to | ook at how you guys handl e el ectrical.
So | do want to nention that no one apparently

| ooked at a | arge nunber of ny signs and all the

certified person.™

an electrical -- a certified electrical person for

guy who drills the hole through the floor, the guy
t hat does the roof jack, so forth.

So that's the issue. And you don't have -- ny

position would be that OAH didn't introduce any evi

table of every qualified person that is currently

isn't that, hey, you're -- I'msorry. Gve ne a second.
The issue -- | guess |I'mrepeating nyself. The
| ssue -- the issue is whether a nonlicensed person, a

noncertified, nonqualified person can plug a fan in, you
know, and | guess you guys agree with ne because this is

really interesting. This is a thing for Superior Court

conplaints. There's not been an inspector out that says,

"Hey, John Doe is up in the attic here. He's not a

And | do not -- I'lIl admt right now | do not use

devel ops the pit, the guy that does the plunbing, the guy

other than they didn't like the way | filled out permts.
And I'll say to you guys, if you don't |ike the way I
fill out permts, then in this box here, seens |ike the

programrer essentially has it referred to a table as a

| t

has

t he
t hat

dence
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qualified in the state of Washington, and if it doesn't,
then you don't accept the permt. This is |ike stalking.
And that's it. |'Il conclude.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Ckay. Thank you
very much. Ms. Zurlini?

M5. ZURLINI: Thank you. So |I'm going
to start just briefly with the penalty schedule. The
office of the attorney general does not set the penalty
in any of these cases, nor does the Departnent. |It's --
t he penalty schedule in the WAC i s what determ nes what
penalty is assigned to the citation being appeal ed, just
so we're all on the sane page there.

In ternms of -- M. R ddle has done a nice job
speaking in generalities and what happened within his
i ndustry, the types of jobs that he does, but what we're
here today to tal k about are 29 specific nonconpliance
| ocations where 29 Class B permts are inplicated. So
we' re not speaking about in general. W' re speaking
about these 29 |ocations.

The material facts in this case, they're not
di sputed. There are 29 conpliance |ocations and 29
Class B permts at issue. Cavalier admtted it validated
26 of those Class B permts, using M. R ddle's
adm nistrator license or his trainee |icense.

You can't use an admnistrator license in the place
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of a certified installer Iicense. You can't use a
trainee |icense nunber in the place of a certified
installer. And Cavalier and M. Riddle did agree that
that, in fact, is what Cavalier did.

Cavalier also -- two of the Class B permts, it
identified certified installers whose nunbers were not
recogni zed by the Departnent. They're not nunbers that
are consistent with any of the licenses for certified
el ectricians.

And then finally, the final -- the 29th Cass B
permt was just wholly -- it wasn't validated. It was
posted but not validated, and that is in the record.

And on this Class B permt, a certified installer
wasn't even identified. So, again, we're tal king about
these, which you all have 29 Class B permts for the 29
| ocations, and for each of these, there are three
viol ations for each.

So M. Riddle obviously is the adm nistrator for
Caval i er, and he speaks about who's responsible for
maki ng sure these are accurately filled out, and that's
his responsibility, to ensure Cavalier fills these
Class B permts out accurately, and that's across the
entire industry.

That's an adm nistrator's job, one of them is to

ensure Class B -- all permts are, in this case,
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val i dat ed appropriately.

So the lawis clear. M. R ddle, as a certified
installer -- actually, excuse ne -- Cavalier enployed
M. R ddle, one, as the admnistrator and the president,
so he is an enpl oyee of Cavalier.

So Cavalier, across these citations or Class B
permts, enployed an uncertified installer, either
M. R ddle or the two folks that we don't know who they
are because the nunber doesn't really apply to any one
particular individual. And then, of course, the | ast
one, no certified installer was naned.

Al'so not in dispute, M. Ri ddle does not possess a
certificate of conpetency. He's not a certified
electrician. Therefore, the citation that was issued to
him also not in dispute. He was identified as the
person perform ng the work, and he's not certified to do
so.

And, again, those facts are not in dispute, and |
woul d point out -- so Cavalier and M. R ddle, they did
not dispute findings of fact No. 4.1 through 4.17. And
they did not dispute findings of fact 4.19 through 4. 24.
Those remai n unchal | enged.

M. R ddle and Cavalier did not dispute concl usions
of law 5.1 through 5.18. 5.19 was a request fromthe

adm ni strative law judge to | ower the penalties -- asks
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you to | ower the penalties associated with these
i nfractions, and that's just sonething that you don't
have the authority to | ower those. Again, we're |ooking
at a penalty schedule that is adopted in WAC

Wth regards to -- and addressing this -- | know
that M. R ddle has not necessarily tal ked about this,
but it is in his briefing, so I'mgoing to address it.

In M. Riddle and Cavalier's appeal, they do assign
one error, and that's to finding of fact 4.18. And that
speaks to -- oh, it talks about the line voltage in that
finding of fact. The judge says that M. R ddl e and
Cavalier failed to mark the Iine voltage box on the
Class B permts.

M. R ddle agrees that the Cass B permts do

include line voltage, but in regards to -- actually was
in their appeal -- they say that the -- oh, "No such box
exists." So basically we didn't check the box because no

such box exi sts.

But if you ook at -- let's see here -- Page 126 of
the record, the judge at sone point -- as you probably
read, we hit a point where the judge just asked if
M. Riddle would stipulate to the existence of the |ine
vol tage box, and he did.

He al so stipulated that the |ine voltage boxes were

not checked, and for that alone, that alone, on all 29,
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the OAH s deci sion should be affirnmed. Al of the
different citations that were -- well, | guess the --
anyway, on that alone, you can find in favor of the
Departnment by affirm ng the OAH deci si on.

But going back to 4.1, you should give no deference
or weight to that because he contradicts hinself, or
Riddle -- M. R ddle and Cavalier contradict thenselves.

So then the discussion in the briefing about
plug-ins, and he -- M. Riddle discussed it here a nonent
ago -- passive systens, and in, again, their briefing,
they go through, you know, the Departnent's know edge of
the radon fans and Cavalier's systemand the Departnent's
website and all of these, you know, different errors
assi gned.

| would note that the record does not provide any
I nformati on about the technol ogy that was used at any of
t hese 29 | ocations. Just because he tal ks about passive
versus -- | don't know what the opposite of passive is --
but what ever technol ogy woul d be different than passive,
there's no evidence in the record as to what was used,
what the conversations were at any of these | ocations.

Al'l we have and is sufficient are the 29 Cass B
permts, identifying uncertified installers and one that
was just sinply not validated.

So based on that, the Departnment asks you to affirm
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OAH s decision, and that's it.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very
much. Jason, chair.

Any comments fromthe board nenbers? Questions?
| will bring up one comment that if you | ook on --

let's see -- nultiple locations, but there's a permt
nunber | abel ed B00123770. One of the permts on the |ist
of violations actually is outside the wi ndow of the
prospective two-year scope or whatever the scope was from
"19 to ' 20.

M5. ZURLINI: [I'msorry. Can you give
that permt nunber to ne again?

CHAl RPERSON JENKINS:  Yeah. |'ve
| ooked at the B001237710. (Inaudible) date issues with
that. That one is actually outside the -- if you | ook at
the OAH s scope of one of the violations there, the
wi ndow they're | ooking at, one of those falls outside the
w ndow. It's been m stakenly used on different dates,
and you go to the permt nunber, it's really different
fromthe -- all the rest of them

M5. ZURLINI: Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: (I naudi bl e.)

M5. ZURLINI: Can you just give ne one
nonent to catch up to you?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Yep. Go ahead.
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UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:

permts -- the nunber is fixed, right,

M.
Yes?

The

Chair?

B

the ones you're

| ooking at? So dependi ng on what group of permts he was

using, it may have been used during that tine period, but

t he nunbers may | ook drastically different.

CHAlI RPERSON JENKI NS:

much. Jason, chair, again.

Thank you very

This -- if you |look at the dates, at the violation

date range, that actually -- the error is sonewhere

because the one says '18. This one says '19.

So they're -- | believe that one was m stakenly
pulled with the other ones. | could be wong. |I'm
trying to pull it up now, take you to a page.

M5. ZURLINI: So this is the permt

that was validated on April 2nd, 20187

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  Yes. Wiich |
think they started the wi ndow March of '19. There it is.
Am | correct with that? That seenms witten out -- and
suddenly | lost ny tab. It disappeared on me. Gve ne

one second, please.

MS. ZURLINI: So if the violation --

and |'mjust trying to catch up with you. So if the
violation, which on the Departnent's matrix, the
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violation date or the range is the date of validation.

So if the violation date otherw se known as the
validation date, if it's 10/28/ 2019 -- so we woul d be
able to go back as far as 10/28 of 2017. And that would
capture the Cass B permit you're tal king about.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: It woul d, but
there's -- | think it would be the OAH (i naudible) date
start range to the end range. Am|l correct in that?

M5. ZURLINI: On, so you're |ooking at
t he order?

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  Well, there is
Oct ober 2019, January 2020. There it is on Page 23 of
our electrical packet.

M5. ZURLINI: | don't have the whole
packet here. There's just -- are you |ooking at the
actual order?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Page 4 of the
order.

MS. ZURLINI: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  El ectri cal
packet Page 23, Cctober 2019 to January 30th, 2020. |
believe that's when the inspector did their w ndow of the
viol ations, and this one violation falls outside that
wi ndow. So | would say, given that, | would want to

(i naudi bl e) at |east one of the violations off the |list.
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M5. ZURLINI: So you're |ooking at

4.107?
CHAl RPERSON JENKINS:  Yes, | am
M5. ZURLINI: Okay.
CHAlI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Yes?
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Mol eswort h.
So |'mcurious about the window | need that

defined a little bit.

Are we tal king about a statute of limtations w ndow
or are we tal king about sonething that the inspector said
| -- these permts within this period of tine?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  When | went
through this, it |ooked |like the OAH was saying that, if
you keep goi ng back further and further, nore violations
not being counted. So they took a wi ndow of this Point A
to Point B and they violated | think it said two-year
wi ndow effectively.

SECRETARY MOLESVWORTH:  Ckay.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  And it says we
were counting these violations (inaudible) --

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So - -

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: That fell
out si de that w ndow.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So ny conmment

woul d be, that's still an illegal permit and that it
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doesn't fall outside of the -- any statute of limtations
because our statute starts at the tine that we' ve

i dentified sonething being wong, and we have two years

to issue.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Yes. | was
just --

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: | just wanted
to nmake sure.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: -- being nore

generous in the reality that these wi ndows (i naudible)
applying for -- yes, it's a violation. Don't get ne
wong. But it just falls outside the one that he was
calling a violation, outside that norrmal w ndow of where
all of us (inaudible).

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  CGot cha.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: (I naudible) from
one vi ol ati on.

MS. ZURLINI: Well, and | think if
|"m-- when | read 4.10, | think that you' re | ooking at
Oct ober 2019 to January 30, 20207

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: | m ght be
| ooking at that -- | mght be quoting wong.

M5. ZURLINI: Ckay. Well, so I'm
| ooking at the initial -- or the proposed decision and

order 4.10, which | think is the one you were talking
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about. And is that what you were tal king about?

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: | believe it
was -- let ne restate what | was saying. Roll back up to
the Page 3, jurisdiction -- occurring from March 6t h,
*18, until January 2020, | believe that one fell outside

t hat real m
Anyway - -
M5. ZURLINI: So |'mnot sure why the

judge said that. Wwat | will tell you is that, | ooking

at 4.10, it looks like Inspector Alred' s investigation
started on Cctober 1st, 2019, and went through
January 30th of 2020, and that was the period that he
performed his inspection.
That is, | guess | would argue, a typo. The record
supports the inclusion of all 29.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Ckay.
M5. ZURLINI: So | --
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: (I naudi bl e.)
M5. ZURLINI: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Any ot her
questions or coments fromthe board? (Inaudible.)
Yes, Board Menber --
BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox.
Probably a question for Chief M esworth. So if a

B permt is filled out and it's not needed and it's not
Page 122

MR, Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N oo o B~ wWw DN PP

N NN N NN P P P PP PR PR R R
g N W N P O © 0 N O o M W N B O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

retracted, if that's the best way of -- | think Inspector
Alred said taken back -- if it's not retracted, it's
still avalid permt and the information that's included

in that permt is what the Departnent uses for the
citation?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Ri ght.

BOARD MEMBER COX: And | know we've
had this conversation in the |ast couple of appeal s about
hypot heticals. Had the contractor found that no work was
necessary and he -- and he retracted the permt, whatever
process that is for B permt, this wouldn't be an issue.
Is -- or do we -- can we go there?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  It's not an

I ssue, | don't think --
BOARD MEMBER COX: (kay then
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: -- here today.

(Si mul t aneous speaki ng.)

BOARD MEMBER COX: Al right.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: | woul d be
specul ati ng.

BOARD MEMBER COX: (Ckay. That's --
all right. Because what | see going on, fromwhat | hear
the testinony and the record, is that the appellant was
told, pull a permit for every radon systemyou put in,

and he's trying to obey the |law, and he goes out there
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and maybe there's already a receptacle near where they
need to plug this thing in or it's a passive system
And as I'"'mreading in here, the testinony, because
the B permts aren't that expensive, they don't bother
retracting the permt, thus |eaving the situation.
And then we do -- the inspector does an
I nvestigation and finds all these still active permts.
Sonebody correct ny thinking if |I'm going down the
wong path, but that's what |'m seei ng happeni ng here.

M5. ZURLINI: Is it appropriate? Can
| junp into that or not?

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: (I naudible) is
t hat a question?

BOARD MEMBER COX: | would -- "Il --
yes, I'll pose it as such, and |I'd be happy to have you
address that, please.

MS. ZURLINI: Onh, sure. So in
response, adhering -- M. Riddle and Cavalier had the
opportunity to present evidence for each of those 29
| ocati ons and what specifically happened. And in the
absence of that information, your question can't be
answer ed because we just can't assune what did or did not
happen.

BOARD MEMBER COX:  (Ckay.

M5. ZURLINI: So they had the
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opportunity to tell us, and they did not do that.
BOARD MEMBER COX: Ckay. Very good.
Thank you, Counsel.
M5. ZURLI NI : Thank you.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Chair Jenki ns
one nore tinmne.
One thing | noted here is all these permts between
the time franes there show that M. R ddle was the
i nstaller for those, and even during that tinme franme he's
a trainee, which we also found out -- we know t hat
trai nees are not supposed to be on -- the permt is
supposed to be the GWNthat's signing off on it.
But the trainee card was expired at the tine also,
So it wasn't even a trainee. It was expired trainee card
all during that tine.
On top of that, there was no GWNsigned off on it,
and so there's nmultiple errors on (inaudible).
Any questions or comments fromthe board?
Hearing none, the chair would entertain a notion.
Board comments? Yes, Board Menber G ay?
BOARD MEMBER GRAY: This is Chair
G ay -- Board Menber Gay, Gr-a-y.
Move to affirm
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: W have a

notion. Do we have a second?
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BOARD MEMBER NORD: Board Menber Nord.

Second.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  We have a
second. Any discussion?

Hearing none, all in favor of the board affirm ng
the ALJ's decisions, raise your hand. Six, seven.

Al'l opposed? | see none.

Motion is affirmed as it stands.

Al'l right. So thank you. The board has nade a
deci si on.

Ms. Zurlini, have you prepared a proposed order?

M5. ZURLIN : | did.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. So
woul d you pl ease have the parties (inaudible) the order
can be agreed upon. Please do not |eave today until you
have | et us know if you need additional tinme or have
reached an agreenent.

Pl ease be advised, if you do not reach an agreenent
today, that will be automatically set for presentnent at
the next regularly schedul ed board neeting.

| f an agreed order cannot be received by that date,
the parties will be expected to file a proposed order,
appear and advi se the proposed order (inaudible) the
board 's decision. Hopefully it will not be necessary.

|f you're able to reach an agreenent as to the form
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of the order before the next neeting, please forward to
the secretary of the board and (i naudible) signed and
provi ded (i naudible).

Thank you very much for your tine.

M5. ZURLINI : Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. It
Is now 12:15. | think it's probably a good tine for a
| unch break before we go into our next item which is |
bel i eve the Departnent's (inaudible). Yeah, the reports.
Thank you.

So at that point there, we'll adjourn for the --
everyone okay with one hour? One hour. So be back here
at, say, 1:15 and we'll start our reports.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Testi ng.
Testing. Can you hear ne?

Al right. Al right. So it is now one -- alnost
1:20 on April 27th, and now bringing the Washington State
El ectrical Board neeting back to order.

Al right. W are up to our Item No. 4, the
Departnental / Legi sl ative Update with M. Larry Vance.

Techni cal Specialist Larry Vance, the floor is
yours.

DEPARTMENTAL/ LEG SLATI VE UPDATE
MR. VANCE: Thank you, Chairnman

Jenkins. M nane, for the record, is Larry Vance,
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L-a-r-r-y, V-a-n-c-e.

First off, I'd like to speak a little bit about the
el ectrical exans. Get the report open. You all received
these reports in the -- in the board packet. Pardon nme
while I'mscrolling here. M conputer is telling ne ny
battery is | ow

| sent you the old report. This is very
interesting. | sent you the old report. This is a
report that | don't think any board nenber here has ever
seen. It is the first tine pass rate for each exam
section.

Thank you very nmuch, Brian.

So it's -- thisis -- thisis a report that we used
to use, and | apologize that | didn't send you the
correct report, but we can certainly talk about this
report.

And under the 01 electrician general exam there's
two sections, one being the 01 general NEC and theory
exam section, and the other one being the |aws and rul es
section.

And it's interesting how each one of those -- and
It's roughly 65 percent of people pass one of those

sessions, and this is information that we found. And the

board requested, well, how do we know how many actually
passed the first tinme -- actually passed the first tine?
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So that's why we have the report that |'ve generally
send -- generally included, and all this tells us is, is
t hat about 65 percent of the tine, sonebody passes one
section of the exam which is good.

But what it -- what history tells us in the actual
first time pass rate is, it's actually sonmewhere around
51 percent of people pass both sections, so we'll see
t hat change, | speculate, with nore and nore invol venent
I n education and apprenticeship prograns with those
| earni ng the 01 trade.

Rul emaki ng update. The |ast board neeting and board
meetings prior to that, we -- we tal ked about rules to --

rules to inplenment Substitute Senate Bill 6126, which was

passed in 2018, and that bill is what inplenented
apprenticeship requirenents. It also brought in an
al l ownance for the Departnent to nmake rules -- tenporary

rules. That is the rulemaking that we just conpleted and
the rule that goes into effect on July 1, 2023.
Vell, that's great. That's -- we got that -- al
that work done. It was a |ot of work, many nonths of
wor k, public hearings, public input, 53 public coments.
Meanwhi | e, noving through the legislature is a bil
t hat ended up being Goss Substitute Senate Bill 5320.
And what 5320 did is, it took the good cause rules

that -- that are just going to be in place now for two
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days. It's arule that's going to be in place for two
days, and I'll get to that.

What it did with that -- what it did with 6126 is,

It did sone housekeeping in 6126, and it provided

per manent pathways for -- for mlitary construction tying
el ectricians out-of-state state-certified electricians,
out-of-state electricians with 16,000 hours with

4,000 hours of commercial industrial experience. It --
It cleaned up a -- a |inbo period that was created by no
one's intention.

In order to qualify for the exam you had to
conpl ete an apprenticeship. In order to work, you had to
be a certified electrician or apprentice. So what it did
is, it kind of put -- it put conpleting apprentices in
| i mbo and the | aw corrected that.

Now you just have to conplete the education and work
experience requirenents of an apprenticeship to qualify.
So you can stay an apprentice. You get through the exam
process, and -- and nove on. So the laww |l also do
t hat .

Vell, when the law did all of this, it is nowin
conflict wth the tenporary provisions that are in the
rule that just was conpleted. So what we -- what the
Departnent has done is, they' ve turned around and they've

filed an expedited rule.
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Expedited rule is a little different -- different
animal. It -- there's not public hearings. There's --
it's expedited. And the only thing that the expedited
rule does is, it inplements the exact provisions of the
law. So there is no other -- there is no other editorial
changes or anything made to the rule.

So that rule is going to go into effect July 1 --
July 3 -- on July 3 -- July 3rd. So we've got a rule --
a good cause rule that goes into effect on July 1, which
I s Saturday, and on -- on Mnday the -- the expedited
rule goes into effect.

So the reason that happened was -- is that you
can't -- you can't anmend a law that's not in effect yet.
So we had to have it in effect for a day or two, and the
filing dates were such that that's how it worked out,
but -- so the Departnent will never take an action on
the -- on the -- with the rule that they spent so | ong
wi th devel oping, but that's just the way things go.

So let's see. So we've covered the expedited
rul emaki ng. We've covered the previous rul emaki ng, 5320,
Substitute Senate Bill 6126.

The only other |I -- change | have for youis -- is
just a little -- little -- just a quick coment about --
you'll see in the Electrical Currents newsletter has been

publ i shed this nonth, but there was a | aw that passed
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al nost three years ago that -- that directed governnent
agencies to end any practice of sharing Social Security
nunbers wi th nongovernnental agencies.

Vel |, we happen to use Social Security nunbers to
I ndex exam dates with our -- with our testing firm PSI.
And it's -- it's done through a secured file transfer.
It's done very -- very securely, but in order to -- in
order to nake this transition, what we've done is that we
now have sonething called an examuni que identifier. So
we're no |onger going to be -- we're no | onger going to
be tradi ng Social Security nunbers outside the agency.

So if you see questions about that, that's what's
going on. It's -- there's still a requirenent -- a state
and federal requirenent for child support enforcenment to
coll ect Social Security nunbers for anybody that we're
Issuing a license or certificate to. So that doesn't go
away. It's just the fact that we can't send PSI out --
an exam approval file wth a Social Security nunber
linked to it, so -- very, very sinple stuff.

Any questions on any of that? Yes, Bob?

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Thank you, Larry.

So you nentioned that now, for exanple, active mlitary
personnel can get credit for work hours towards being
able to take the exam nati on.

How about civilians that work on mlitary
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installations? Do we still have a gap there where those
fol ks' work hours do not give themcredit towards
eventual |y getting a |icense?

MR. VANCE: The Departnent is still
going to -- the electrical programis still going to
eval uat e anyone's out-of-state experience, out-of-country

experience. W're going to continue to evaluate that and

provide credit in their electrical |icensing record.
Soif I"'ma mlitary person -- let's say I'ma --
let's say |"'mworking as a -- if I"'mworking for a

defense contractor in another country, is it a
possibility that | could gain experience if there was a
certified electrician there and I was working with that
certified electrician.
There is a possibility, but there's sone -- there's

a few thresholds that we would have to see in order to
give themcredit in that regard. W actually have peopl e
from-- we provided hours to that are in the research
stations in Antarctica, for instance, so --

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Civilians?

MR. VANCE: Civilians, yes. So the
provision that went in for mlitary, there was always a
provision in 6126 for mlitary to be credited with hours
that they could use toward conpl eti ng an apprenti ceshi p.

5320 went further. What it said was, is if you're
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a-- if you ve got 8,000 hours of construction battalion
experience as a construction battalion electrician, you
can qualify for the examw thout conpleting
apprenticeship. So what it didis, it gave -- it opened
a door for those true mlitary electricians.

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Yeah. Again,
those are mlitary.

MR. VANCE: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Active mlitary.

MR. VANCE: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: The people that |
think are still in a gap are those civilian maintenance
el ectricians that support a mlitary installation, |ike
the joint base in Tacona.

MR. VANCE: Mm hm

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Those -- those
mai nt enance el ectricians that work on that base and do
el ectrical work don't have a way to get credit for the

hours they spend there towards getting a Washington State

| i cense for maintenance, for exanple. |Is that still the
case?

MR VANCE: | --

BOARD MEMBER GRAY: | know | brought

this up to you several years ago, but --

MR. VANCE: So what those el ectricians
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are doing is that we -- as a state regul atory agency, we
have to | ook at federal facilities as an island. And
anything that goes on there, we don't -- we don't
regul ate whatsoever. W would treat those hours
practically as out of country.

Is there -- is there a possibility that someone that
had a training certificate working under the supervision

of a state-certified electrician while working on that

federal installation -- and when we tal k about federal
installations, | nean, it's Joint Base Lewis MChord,
Hanf or d.

| nmean, these are all, you know -- there are people

that are getting credit for working on federal facilities
that are operating within the regulatory |licensing
structure of Wshi ngton.

So to answer your question, is there a path for
then? | see a path for them | don't see any path for
themthat's anything based around a grandfathering or a,
you know -- or anything to that effect, but | do see,
t hrough the regul atory, you know, steps, are you working
under the supervision of a certified electrician? Are
you doing all those things?

From what | understand, at |east at Joint Base Lew s
McChord, fromtheir construction folks, that they require

their contractors on -- working on the site to follow the
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State's |icensing guidelines.

So it -- there isn't a special provision in the | aw
for it, but, again, it's just, if you hit the marks,
there's not a reason that we should or should not -- if
you're in a conpletely different industry, |ike shipyard,
for instance, | nean, working on ships, different story
because it's Coast Cuard standards. |It's not National
El ectric Code.

It's quite different, but lot of the sane parts, but

not -- it's -- it's not the electrical construction trade
regul ated under the electrical licensing |laws, so -- yep.
Yes.

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  Boar d

Menmber Knotti ngham

Isn't it true that they have to have experience
doi ng new construction, not just nmaintenance, to get
credit?

MR. VANCE: They could get -- they
could get the credit in the maintenance -- in the
mai nt enance specialties where they would get credit.
They -- they would be in their |ane, so to speak.

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  So t hey
could get up to 4,000 hours as an 07, but in order to get
an 01 and qualify for an 01, you would have to have

4. 000 hours of new construction?
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MR. VANCE: Correct. And they

could -- they could -- they could conplete that through
an apprenticeship, right, if they wanted to, but the
thing that the law did provide, the original law, 61 --
Iin Goss Substitute Bill 6126 -- or no. |It's Substitute
Senate Bill 6126.

"1l |leave the front part out from now on, but what
it did provide is, it -- it provided anyone with a

specialty certificate to be credited with 4,000 hours

toward conpl etion of an apprenticeship. It doesn't nean
advanced standing. It doesn't nean anything el se.
VWhat it neans is, is there sonewhere -- sonewhere in

t hat whol e apprenticeshi p experience, you can use those
hours toward conpletion. Could be in the m ddle sone.
Coul d be at the end sonme. Could be however the --
that's -- that's conpletely up to the candi date and the
apprenticeship to figure out how they want that, but
yeah. Yes.
Any ot her questions?
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Chai r Jenki ns.
Last neeting we had, you had a -- quite a long |ist
of bills and (inaudible). Do you happen to have those
(inaudible)? | had ny notes out.
MR. VANCE: They're all dead.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Ckay.
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MR VANCE:
CHAlI RPERSON
MR VANCE:

chai n.

a -- how they describe it is,

the | ast five days of session,

pi ece of legislation that does affect the electrical
program it's on -- it's -- the bill nunber is 5187, and
on Page 312 and | believe it's on line -- it's on
Subsection 3, there is a carve-out out of the electrical
licensing fund for $6.7 mllion, and it is for the
expressed purposes of wages for electrical inspectors,

| ead el ectrical inspectors, supervisors, technical

specialists, in other words, everybody in the inspection
And it's -- it's a biennial carve-out, so it only
| asts two years. So half of that $6.7 mllion will be

di stributed each year, but what that does is, it provides

and retention of electrical inspectors. So while it's

not permanent, it is a -- it's a very substantial step.
CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you.
MR. VANCE: The governor has not yet
signed the bill. It -- it passed the legislature wthin

20 days to signit. So it's a no new taxes budget.
From-- it's ny understanding, it's not

controversial. | don't see any reason that -- | don't

They're all dead.
JENKINS:  Ckay.

Yes. One piece of -- one

It provides for recruitnent

so the governor has

Page 138

jﬁ'iﬂ‘ Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc.

scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com
800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N O O b~ W N PP

N N D N NN P P P P PP PR R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N P O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

have any -- if I was |ooking at a glass ball, 1'd think
that -- that -- | don't see any controversy with the
budget, so --

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Thank you very
much.

MR. VANCE: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Question here?

BOARD MEMBER BAKER  Board Menber
Baker .

So the conpensation for the staff, the $6.7 mllion,

where is that noney comng fronf

MR. VANCE: It cones out of the
electrical licensing fund, out of the electrical -- the
bl oated el ectrical fund. So appropriation of spending.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: It's out of our
current $16 mllion fund?

MR. VANCE: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Ckay.

MR VANCE: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER So we're stil
funding it?

MR. VANCE: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Ckay. And how
does it get allocated? How do you determ ne the

al |l ocati on?
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MR VANCE: It's going to be
col l ectively bargai ned.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER  Ckay.

MR. VANCE: Yes.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Thank you

MR. VANCE: Yeah. Yep. So --

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  Any nore
guestions?

MR. VANCE: More to cone on that,
S0 -- yeah.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  Any nore

guestions fromthe board for Technical Specialist Larry

Vance?
MR. VANCE: Thank you very nuch.
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right.
Thank you. Al right.

Moving on to our next item |ooks like we are at the

secretary's report with Wayne Mol esworth. (I naudible.)

SECRETARY' S REPORT

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  We'll work on

t hat .

M. Chair, board, thank you for allowng nme to

read

the secretary's report into the record. W'Ill start with

t he budget. The electrical fund bal ance on March 31st,
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2023, was $16, 522,840, which is about seven times the
average nonthly operating expenditures.

The average nonthly operating expenditures for third
quarter of fiscal year 2023 was $2,486, 725 conpared to
$2, 222,765 for the sane period of |ast year.

This is an increase of about 12 percent. Average
nmonthly revenue for the first quarter of fiscal year 2023
was $2, 670, 388 conpared to $2, 642,862 for the same period
| ast year, an increase of about 1 percent.

March 2023, custoner service, we had -- 42,814
permts were sold last quarter. 98.6 percent, or 42,199,
were processed online, which is the sane from| ast
quarter. 99.8 percent of contractor permts are sold
online, which is consistent wwth the previous quarter.
Can't get nuch better.

Honeowners' online sales for this quarter is
83.8 percent, which is a 1.5 percent decrease fromthe
previous quarter. Online inspection requests is
76.8 percent, which is a .3 percent decrease from | ast
guarter. During this quarter, custoners nade
90.6 percent of all electrical license renewals online,
which is a .9 percent decrease fromlast quarter.

Key performance nmeasures, percent of inspections
performed within 24 hours of request, goal is 86 percent.

In 2022, it was 76 percent. In this period, it's
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78 percent, so an increase of 2 percent.

Percentage of inspections perforned wthin 48 hours
of request, 89 percent last year. This year it's
90 percent. So we're back up in the 90s, which was a
consideration from-- during COVID, where we weren't able
to do that.

Total inspections performed, 61,770 |ast year, and
this year it was 62,970. Virtual electrical inspections
perfornmed, last year at this tinme, 6,870; this period
this year, 10, 344.

Nunber of focus citations and warni ngs, contractor
| i censi ng, worker certification, no permt, failing to
supervi se trainees, anticipated total nunber is 4, 136.
The field last year did 516, ECORE and | did 1,255, for a
total of 1,771. Field -- this |ast year was 263 for this
period, ECORE audit was 1,085, and the total of 1, 348.

| nspecti on stops per inspector per day was 11.4 | ast
year, and this sanme period this year at 10.09.

Serious electrical corrections that would result in
di sconnection, 8,775 last year at this tinme. This year
is 8,573.

Turnaround tine for average plan set review, goal is
1.6 weeks. This is encouraging. Last year was two days.
We're down to one day, the sane tinme frane.

Pl an pages reviewed all electronically, 1,084 |ast
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year at this time. This is part of the reason for the
one day. W only had 400 pages cone through in plan
review this quarter.

Percent of warnings by focused violation type,
| i censing was 9 percent; certification, 23 percent;
permts, 63 percent; trainee supervision, 5 percent; al
focus citation warnings were 4.2 percent.

We're currently | ooking at our warnings and
determning if -- how we are applying warnings is
actually making a difference. Electrical |icensing
citations, amusenent rides, and appeal section, as of
4/ 10/ 23, there were a total of 783 itens to be processed.
The ol dest itemis dated 3/2 -- I'msorry -- March 2nd,
2023.

The majority of our workload is closer to
March 17th, 2023. 606 of these are affidavits. W are
seeing an increase in the nunber of affidavits being
submtted alnost likely due to the July 1, 2023, |aw
change having to do with apprenticeship.

El ectrical trainees are submtting (inaudible) the
01 general category to ensure they are recorded prior to
this date. |In addition to processing docunents,
|i censing staff are responsible for answering all phone
calls, electrical program phone calls, for the tine frane

bet ween January 1, 2023, to March 31st, 2023. They
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answered a total of 6,230 calls, not including calls
comng into their direct |ines.

This is an average of 2,076 calls per nonth, 519 per
week, 103 per day, and 12 per hour. This does not
I ncl ude out bound calls being made to custoners. Current
staffing allows for two representatives to be avail able
at atine to answer calls.

Licensing teamis al so asked -- or tasked wth
updating standard work and training staff due to | aw
changes that take place July 1, 2023. W have a team who
has been working diligently to map these changes,

i ncluding the inplenentation of the changes to standard
wor k and a training plan.

Changes are being communi cated with staff, and
training will be inplenented as we nove closer to the
7/ 1/ 2023 update -- or date. This has to do with the
apprenticeship i nplenmentation.

Recently the tax service representative positions
and citations and anusenent rides were reallocated to
prograns specialist positions, which aligns with the
appeal position. This provides a growmh and devel opnent
opportunity within the program including a pronotional
opportunity.

This reall ocation was needed not only to ensure the

type of work perfornmed in these positions as properly
Page 144

,:A‘ Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc. scheduling@capitolpacificreporting.com

800.407.0148


https://www.capitolpacificreporting.com

© 00 N oo o B~ wWw DN PP

N NN N NN P P P PP PR PR R R
g N W N P O © 0 N O o M W N B O

Electrical Board Meeting
Transcript of Proceedings - April 27, 2023

docunented, but also to ensure the |evel of know edge
required for these positions is acknow edged.

W have a dedi cated nanager for these citations,
anmusenent rides and appeals positions. Jen D etrich has
taken on this role. She will be working wth this group
as we hire to fill positions, streamine workflow and
cross-train enployees in these positions. The interview
process is underway to fill two vacancies in that area.

In this area of the tax service representatives that
were reallocated, we reallocated themalso so that we
could cross-train themwth the person that does the
board work, and so that if we have people that |eave, if
we have peopl e on vacation, we can cover those areas.
Wer eas, before, we only had one individual to do the
wor k. Jen has been doing a wonderful job creating
standard work for that position and noving it forward.

Ckay. Testing labs, no newtesting |abs to report.
Larry has al ready spoken to 5320, so |I'mgoing to bypass
t hat .

And that |eads us to other programupdates. So | --
| shoul d have probably done this earlier today when they
were all here, but if you renenber seeing a group of guys
in the back corner over here, sone of themare stil
here. You guys can raise your hand if you're a

supervi sor, technical specialist, inspectors.
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W had a group of themhere so that -- we think it's
| nportant that they see the activity on this board, what
goes on behind the scenes, and actually for a | ot of
them it's succession planning so that they can prepare
to know what all the different parts of this program
include. That's been a (inaudible).

| -- also we've got a new project going that | want
to bring to your attention called the Fresh Look
Reconsi deration Project. This is just for your
awar eness.

We just started this project. It's a project to
take a | ook at when we deny worker hours to go towards
exam nations. W're put sonething in place or working to
put sonmething in place that allows a second | ook at hours
that we actually deny.

And what we found in preparation for this in our
data was that the reporting data was data that was pulled
together for denial, so the nore hours you denied, the
better it looked. Right? Does that sound right to
anybody? D dn't to ne.

And so we changed that, and what was happening in

sone cases was, we were getting audits that would have

out-of-state people applying to -- for examnation. W
woul d find the 8,000 hours they needed, but they

submtted 32,000 hours. W woul d consider the rest of
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t hose hours denied. Right? W don't need to do that.
They just don't apply.

So we're taking the 8,000 we found, and the denials
are not applied because there's nothing there. Now, if
we couldn't reach the 8,000, then we would tal k about al
the hours that we actually deni ed because we weren't able
to neet that -- that point. Right?

So it's brought a lot of different things to our
attention as to how we were doing things, how we were
measuring things, and -- and hopefully this won't be an
| ssue because we get very few of these.

We do reconsider -- | reconsider at the present
time, but they're looking for actually another avenue as
well, so that we can give everybody a voice and give them
t he opportunity to have sonebody el se here.

So that's what the First Look Reconsideration, or
the FLR, project is all about, in case you heard about it
out there. Ckay.

| would like to take this tine to introduce you
guys -- and sone of you have already nmet him but back in
the corner here is Brian Hornback. Brian is who |
directly report to.

He is the assistant director of field services and
public safety, and so I'd |ike to just turn it over to

Brian for a couple mnutes to introduce hinself, talk a
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little bit.

And go, Brian.

MR. HORNBACK: So since this is ny
first board neeting, I'll try and follow the protocol.

And |'m Brian Hornback, deputy assistant director
for field services public safety. Nanme is spelled
B-r-i-n -- B-r-i-a-n. Last nane is Ho-r-n-b-a-c-k.

For those of you who are interested, I'll |eave sone
contact cards wth Wayne so you get ny busi ness phone
nunber if anybody wants to give ne a holler for anything.

So | really don't want to spend a whole | ot of your
time just with the hi/hello thing. More inportantly,
It's about first off, thank you. | sat here today --
this is ny first board neeting obviously -- and |istened
to the process you go through with appeals and recogni ze
the hard work that that takes to really try and get it
ri ght for sonebody.

So appreciate the board, appreciate the partnershinp,
t he advi ce and counsel that you guys provide to Wayne as
we go through everything fromthe |egislative session
that -- you know, that Larry and Randy and Lauren did
such a great job with this year.

But that doesn't help -- doesn't happen without a
good partnership, so really just want to say thank you

for -- for that.
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And | always want to be available to hel p, you know,
t he goal of advancing the profession and naking sure that
t he consuners are protected, that the professionis -- is
cared for as well, and that's -- that's a subject that's
near and dear to ne and Steve Reinmuth, ny boss, who is a

predecessor to John Barnes a | ot of years ago.

The el ectrical programwas the first -- first
program he represented as an AG so he still has a soft
spot for it. Again, just want to be -- we want to be

good partners and thank you for that.

Real quick, touch on the Fresh Look Reconsi deration
project that Wayne tal ked about. | think it's inportant
to acknow edge, we've got huge confidence in the
el ectrical program and Wayne's | eadership and in the
deci si ons nade, but al so recognizing that you're talking
about sonebody's I|ivelihood.

So, you know, it's not about, did we get it right or
not. It's about, you know, how close to perfect can we
get, and sonetinmes it's not a matter of we nmade an
| nproper decision. It's a matter of sonebody didn't give
us the informati on we needed, so let's give thema second
bite at that apple and anot her opportunity to provide
that information to us to nmake sure we got it right.

So like |I said, great confidence that the decisions

bei ng made by our staff are really good with the
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i nformation being provided, but did we always have it
right? Let's nake sure we've got an opportunity for
t hat .

So don't have a whole |ot else and don't want to
spend a whol e bunch of your time, but if there's a
guestion or anything that you would like to ask fromthe
| eadership team please feel free. And if not, I'll step
off this stage, so to speak, and | et you have your
meet i ng back.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Thank you,
Bri an.
MR. HORNBACK: You bet. Thank you.
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Brian is a
great guy to work for, so he helps us out. And things
that | bring to him he pronotes to the best of his
ability within the paraneters that we have to work in, so
it's -- it's a good partnership for our program and the
| eadership that we have. So we've not always been so
lucky. Right? So -- at tines.

So just to wap it up, are there any questions from
t he board nenbers?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Board Menber Don

Baker ?
BOARD MEMBER BAKER  Board Menber
Baker .
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| would be remiss if | didn't touch on our
$6.5 mllion funds that are going towards our inspectors.
So maybe you could expand on that a little bit, on how
you see that, directly or indirectly, helping that
retention and recruitnent that we' ve been tal ki ng about
to the point of nauseamw th this group. Right?
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Right. Right.
BOARD MEMBER BAKER: And | guess we
all shouldn't be surprised that maybe next quarter we're
going to see that that balance drop by $6 mllion; right?
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: Wl |, not
instantly, right, because it --
BOARD MEMBER BAKER: (I naudi bl e.)
(Si mul t aneous speaki ng.)
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: -- per paid
period, so it wll allocate it as we go through the
process.
BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Yeah. And part
of that question includes, where are you currently -- how
many outstandi ng, you know, job openings do we have?
What are you seeing for -- yeah.
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So right now
we're sitting at about 13 percent vacancy. |'mtrying to
t hi nk of the exact nunber we have for open positions, and

| think you're probably sitting at about 16 to 18 open
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positions for that.

As far as the 6.5, HR and our budget program wl |
actually -- nunber one, HRwill bargain it, but they wll
wor k together to find out how do they apply that to each
classification, keeping the sanme spread between
I nspectors, |eads, and supervisors so that they can cone
up with a good nunber. There's a series of different
t hings that we have to be aware of as we go forward with
it.

How will this affect the budget, as far as future
buyouts? You know, when you take a big raise, it's not
al ways about the big raise. It's how do we apply it to
the rest of the benefit package and that type of thing.

So |'ve been asked several tinmes, what's ny job in
this? My job is to make sure that we have a heal thy
budget after sone of these decisions and identify those
things that may be a hindrance to keeping a healthy
program f und.

My goal -- and I've talked just briefly with Brian
and Steve about this, but nmy goal is to nake sure that
when we come up Wi th m nimum operating expenses, 22
positions it |ooks |like overall. And that's with
supervi sors, |eads, and individuals.

So | was off.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: Twenty-two
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vacanci es in the departnent?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Yes.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Ckay.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  And so -- so
when we -- when we look at this, we have to really be,
you know, very careful not to overspend, and the goal for
me is to get to where we know exactly what our fund has
to maintain fromthe board s perspective.

Right nowit's three nonths of operating expenses,
which is around 7 point sonething mllion. Wen we get
this raise, that's going to absolutely have to increase.
Correct?

And so now if we keep that at -- you know, let's --
let's estimate it's going to be about, you know, 8 --

9 -- 9mllion. Let's estimate. Now we've got to keep
9 mllionin that fund all the tine.

The goal is to balance that with fee increases and
vacanci es that we have to nmake sure that our fund isn't
growing at such a rapid rate. This last year we put
$8 mllion in the bank in one biennium right? So that
nore than covers the 6.5, but that's not all that's
there. Right? There's a |ot of peripheral things that
cone into play with the budget.

And so we just have to get that all cal cul ated,

under st and what our expectations are for the board, and
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t hen have a plan for only increasing fees when we need
to, to maintain the budget instead of having it exceed
because what happens when we exceed it as nuch as we are
now -- this is kind of a two-sided coin here.

Now we don't have to worry about getting raided.
Right? Doesn't nmean (inaudible) when we |ost the
8 mllion to the leg, that they just took it, and so now,
if we maintain it properly, we won't have to worry about
that, but we'll still maintain the growth in the fund.
It's healthy and keeps it at a stable rate.

So there's still a lot of work to do. It's not
really all that easy. (Inaudible.)

Did | answer --

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Yeah. | have
anot her question or comment on that conversation. | have
a different question.

So 22 current vacancies, which (inaudible) fair
guestion (inaudible) answer, but how many inspectors do
you expect to lose to retirenent this year?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  So | don't know
that right offhand. 1t's a hard nunber to cone up wth.
W have -- you know, we have several that are in that
category. You know, | could have went |ast year, but you

just don't know.

Anticipated -- you know, |I could say that, if |I was
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to anticipate what we're going to do, you know, this next
year, we mght see 10 percent of staff as a whol e that

m ght retire.

| think that with this, if it's -- if it cones out
to be as good as we think, because we're still just kind
of estimating, | think it mght even delay sone of that.
| think that people mght decide, well, it's worth

hangi ng out and then we put into play nore of a process
where we're out there recruiting, changing our hiring
processes a little bit so we can hire sooner and qui cker.

It's been suggested that we | ook at having a
part-tinme recruiter, face-to-face recruiter, that can
come and talk to trade organi zati ons and pronote our |obs
that way, which | think is an excellent idea.

So hopefully, when we have vacancies, it won't be
quite so long to fill them You know, we're estinmating
we're going to be at the top of the scale instead of the
next to the |ast of the scal e because right now we're
set -- we're next to the last as far as wages in the
state, you know, with all the nmunicipalities.

So this will bring us right up to where we're wthin
one or two of the top or nore. W just don't know.
There's a ot of different things going on.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER  So different

guestion, Question No. 2, and then I'I|l be done. So
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you' ve been reporting, | think for a year or two, on plan
review and the goal (inaudible) week and a half, two
weeks, and you're always |like a day or two days
(i naudi ble), howin the world are you doing that? And in
the private sector, if we were doing that, we'd be
| ooki ng at noving personnel to different places and --
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Yeah
BOARD MEMBER BAKER: How i s that
possi bl e, you can do plan review in a day?
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  It's -- it's
the size of the plan review, nunber one; right? It's,
what are the size of the jobs? How fast can they do
then? |If we're getting a lot of smaller jobs, right now
it's probably pretty easy to nove those through

Mostly we can -- we give the credit to electronic
plan review. Used to be we noved plans back and forth.
Right? And we wait and we wait and that all counts as
part of the tinme, and now everything is electronic. They
have a much better conmuni cati on.

And, you know, | give all the credit to Joel
Vankovi ch (phonetic), who is the supervisor there. He --
he really has done a great job of inplenenting it,
getting everybody on board, doing the outreach with
everybody, and saying, you know, "Here, let's do it quick

and give you what you need."
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There are jobs that take longer. You know, this is
an average, of course, but it just depends on the type of
jobs | see com ng through, but, you know, average when a
plan comes in and they can get it done in a day, that
just tells me they're a little bit smaller. And he's
kind of told ne that occasionally, you know. They're not
getting the huge jobs anynore.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: So shoul d you
change the goal ?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: | don't -- |
don't really -- you know, | want to be careful of that.
Because of the size of the jobs --

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: (I naudi bl e.)

(Si mul t aneous speaki ng.)

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Now we' ve
got -- now we've got nowhere to make that goal, right, if
we decrease it too nmuch. | think what we do need -- what
we do need to do, though, is, we need to take a | ook at
hi story and see over the past two or three years, what
have been the size of these plan reviews, what have we
averaged, you know, once we started the electronic plan
review, and get a good idea of the different types of
jobs that are there and then adjust -- adjust fromthere,
know ng that, if we have a sudden inrush of, you know,

the State is going to fund, you know, rebuilding 40
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school s across the state, that we understand that that
goal m ght not be net at that tine.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER:  Yeah.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  But, you know,
goals are that thing where we shoot for and -- and we did
change the goal for ECORE. W raised it because they
were -- they were down around -- their goal was 14,000 --
or 1,400, and they were up around 3,000, and so we
changed t hat.

W tal ked with ECORE guys and said, "Hey, let's give
oursel ves sonething to shoot for here." This is not
applicable anynore. It's been there for two or three
years goi ng that way, and, you know, they changed it.

They're just happy as can be with changing it, and
they're still neeting and exceeding that goal, so | think
we have to | ook at goals too, as a way to keep norale up
with -- with staff and not give themstuff that that's
not attainable and nmake sure that it's attainable and
that they can neet those things and be proud when they
nmeet them because it's not real easy, but -- but it's
al so, you know, not -- not as hard as we could nmake it.

BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Wl |, know ng
that it's the average, right, you're going to have
sonme -- high schools or hospitals are going to take

| onger. You have a bunch of small ones, it's going to
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bring the average down, so that nakes sense.
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: They mi ght do
four of these in a day for the snmaller, so --
BOARD MEMBER BAKER: Yeah. Thank you.
SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Yep. You're

wel cone.
BOARD MEMBER CUNNI NGHAM  Board Menber
Cunni ngham
This -- this subject is very close obviously to ny

professional practice. W've seen it over about a
five-year period. First it was the electronic -- |
believe transmt plans electronically. That shoul d del ay
the time -- turnaround time quite a bit, but actually the
paynment, the ability to exchange paynent to get that al
sped up within the last two years, and so it's fantastic.

W have a little -- sone of the engineers in our
office have a friendly conpetition to see how short they
can get the plan review tinme down. | think part of it
is, they don't have a lot of volunme right now.

Lot of really large projects that m ght have
hundreds of sheets are happening inside the cities. So
they're not even going through plan review at the state
level. | think it's great.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Thanks. |

appreci ate that.
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You actually said sonething that rem nded ne of
sonmething I want the board to know, that we're actually
| ooking at sone nmunicipalities that may or may not be
meeting all the requirenents of equal to or better than,
and what we're finding is, we found a few of themthat
aren't doing plan review but sending their plan review to
the State, and that's not the intent.

Qur workl oad should not include their permts,
right, in their plan review So we're talking to those
muni ci pal i ties about making sure that they have all the
el ements of a programin order to qualify to have their
own jurisdiction, so going down that road.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Chai r Jenki ns.

Does anybody have any questions for Secretary Wayne
Mol eswor t h?

BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox.

To your point you just nade, those nunicipalities
that do pass themon for plan review to the State, what
do you do with those? Do you run thenf

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Wel |, we have
In the past because they haven't really been | ooking at
the -- at the -- you know, at the -- where they're at,
but we're also told that they've been sendi ng them back
and the everyday inspectors in these nmunicipalities do

t hem
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BOARD MEMBER COX:  Ckay.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: They don't have
a separate plan review. W don't care if they have a
Separate plan review as long as their inspectors are
actually doing a plan review,

BOARD MEMBER COX: Ckay.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH: But we had to
have sone that sneak through and then -- but when | was
talking to a few of the different guys, they said that,
"No. We -- normally we would send themright back to
t hem and say, 'Nope, on you.'"

BOARD MEMBER COX: Thank you.

CERTI FI CATI OV CEU QUARTERLY REPORT
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right.
Chai r Jenki ns.
| notice that our next list here is certificated --
certificated -- Larry, are you -- anything el se you want
to bring up?
MR. VANCE: | already covered that.
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: That's what |
figured, but thought I'd try and (i naudible).
MR. VANCE: Nope. Thank you very
much.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Yeah. [It's one
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of those days.
W did have a request. D d you want to --
BOARD MEMBER GRAY: Sure. Yeah
Thank you, M. Chair. Board Menber Gay, Gr-a-y.

And | just wanted to nake everyone aware that there
is an effort to reformat the National Electrical Code.
It's a project that's going to go on for probably two
cycles with a goal to have it published with the new
format in 2029 edition.

And one of the concerns | have is that there is not
a vehicle for getting a ot of public input into opinions
on -- on this effort because there won't be public inputs
toit. It will all be done internal with the code nmaking
panels in the quarterly commttee.

It actually -- it is a canpaign that's |led by the
NEC correlating conmttee. So | want to kind of get on
the record so we get the word out that if any of the
st akehol ders do have an opinion or comment on what's
going on, that they are aware of it.

|"msure there will be a lot nore information in the
future, but right now the task groups are being forned,
and we're actually starting the work of -- of reformng
t hat docunent .

But the argunent is that it has not had a full-scale

reformatting since 1937, and one of the goals is to break
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out some of the articles into nore articles, so it wll
expand the subjects and topics to nore articles.

For exanple, the one |"'mnost famliar with is, |
sat on code naki ng panel 5, which is grounding and
bondi ng, and two of the task groups that are working on
t hat woul d col | ect medi um vol tage groundi ng and bondi ng
and put it in a separate article proposed as Article 350
or -- yeah. 350 would be a new article covering nmedi um
vol t age groundi ng and bondi ng.

There's another task group that's working on limted
vol tage of grounding and bonding. So it's to kind of
separate sone of those topics out of the existing
articles.

So, anyway, | just asked the chair if | could just
take a nonent just to bring that to people's attention.
And if you are interested, there's -- or want to coment
to (inaudible), you be aware that that's going on. Thank

you.

PUBLI C COMVENT REGARDI NG | TEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. So
Chai r Jason Jenkins.
Do we have anybody here for public conments? No one
signed in, but does anyone want to speak on public

conment ?
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Al right. Gven that, last thing | was going to
bring up is TAC. Is --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Go ahead and
come back to ne.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: TAC i s sonet hi ng
that the board appoints or is it sonething that the -- |
t hi nk (i naudi bl e)?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Yeah. So the
board has nenbers that can apply to the TAC, and we have
seats available for them And the Departnent has two
seats, as well as supervisor and inspector seat, but
t hose woul d be com ng up

Larry, do you renmenber the due date?

MR. VANCE: May 20t h.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: May 20th. So
apply by then. W'Il -- the programactually reviews
t hose applications and -- and chooses the TAC.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  So it's not
appoi nted by the board then?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  No.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Ckay. Just
maki ng sure. Had people ask about that and | wasn't
sure.

So if you're interested in doing so, you have until

April 20th [sic] to apply to the TAC conmttee. So thank
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you

you.

have one other thing | wanted to touch base with you

guys. This last go-around with the board packets and the
appeal packets, you got electronic, right, box. That was
a brainchild of Jen and her staff, and -- and the -- the

| nportant part of that is that -- is that we did a review

of the cost of printing one hundred and --

t housand dollars to print board packets for you. Crazy.
W can't afford that. And so -- so it takes a | ot of
time. That's just -- that's just the printing cost of

the paper. That wasn't our staff tine.

format it better, you know, nmake sure and | et us know.

froma program perspective, it's -- it's a cost that
we're going to have a hard tine maintaining and
absorbing, especially wth staffing and the staffing tine

that goes into it.

have told nme they appreciate it. There's ways to nmake

notes and everything in it, but if you need any help,

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yeah. | just

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Fifty.
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: -- fifty

And so it's -- it's very expensive. W want to help

guys in any way we can. Any suggestions on how to

| just want to let you know that froma board -- or

So |'ve had sone good input fromsone of you that
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know Jen had hel ped a few of you get started, which is
great. She's always avail abl e.

Don't call ne because |I'mterrible at everything.

So -- but any comments about the electronic board packets
or changes we need to nake (inaudible) because that's
probably where we -- yeah

BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox
conment i ng.

| appreciate enbedding the credentials so we don't
have to log in. Mikes it really easy to just click right
onit and get to it, and | don't have to renenber what ny
password is, so thank you

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Chai r Jenki ns.

Any ot her questions, comments, concerns
with (inaudible) very beginning. Don't forget we have a
speci al neeting on June 1st and 2nd probably. Please |et
me know if you cannot attend that. | nuch appreciate it.
W really like to nake sure we retain a quorum for that.
Much appreci at ed.

And we still have our regular schedul ed board
meeting on July 27th. So don't forget those two, and,
once again, | really, really appreciate you guys -- and
that's scheduled in Pasco with nore details to conme, so
(i naudi bl e) .

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: (| naudi bl e.)
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(I naudi bl e background
speaki ng.)

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  Ch, so, hey,
heads up, Vancouver for the next regularly schedul ed --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Pasco is very
warmin July, so that's good.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Were is the
June 1st neeting being hel d?

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: That is in
d ynpi a.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER. At the A ynpi a
Hot el .

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: (I naudi bl e.)

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: O ynpi a Hot el
at Capitol Lake.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: O ynpi a Hotel at
Capitol Lake.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: And that is
scheduled to -- the first neeting, if it goes two days,
the first neeting will end at what tine?

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS:  About 5: 00.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER. W only have

the roomuntil 5:00.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: | have a hard
stop at 3:00.
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CHAI RPERSON JENKINS:  Well, we wll
play it by ear. Thank you.
BOARD MEMBER COX: Board Menber Cox.

And what is the evidentiary hearing regardi ng again,

pl ease?

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: It is about the
Anacortes --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Anacortes --
sorry.

MR. BLOHOW AK:  This is Ben Bl ohow ak,
for the record.
It's about the Anacortes (inaudible) ferries, and so
there was a packet -- and this started at the electrical
board, noved to Superior Court, got sent back to the

board from Superior Court, and so we have an origi nal

heari ng.

Jen, when | talked to her -- she's been great since
she's becone part of the program-- has been -- we have
put together the packet. | believe that was sent out to

the nenbers for you to start review ng.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Tonor r ow.

MR, BLOHOW AK:  Tonorr ow.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER.  That's why |
haven't seen it.

MR. BLOHOW AK:  Yeah. You'll get the
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packet, but we also -- we have an admnistrative | aw
judge that we've asked to cone oversee that hearing, so
any -- because there will be live witness testinony.
There coul d be objections, you know, (inaudible) hearsay,
you know, all those sort of things.

So there will be an admnistrative |aw judge there
to make rulings on the evidence, but you, as the nenbers,
w Il make the final decision on the nerits on whatever
record is created by the parties (inaudible)
adm ni strative | aw judge.

BOARD MEMBER COX: Thank you.

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  And this is
based on the original reason for the appeal, not on the
merits (inaudible) wasn't part of it; right?

MR. BLOHOWAK: Yes. And who are you,
for the record?

SECRETARY MOLESWORTH:  Ch, |'m sorry.
Wayne Mol esworth, for the record.

CHAI RPERSON JENKINS: Al right. Any
ot her questions? Chair Jenkins.

Any ot her questions, comments, concerns for the
board itself? Al right. Gven that, the board -- the
chair would entertain a notion to end the neeting.

BOARD MEMBER NORD: Board Menber Nord.

Mot i on.
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CHAlI RPERSON JENKI NS: W have a
not i on.

BOARD MEMBER KNOTTI NGHAM  Second.

CHAI RPERSON JENKI NS: We have a notion
from Jack Knottingham and the (inaudible) signify by
sayi ng aye.

BOARD MEMBERS:. Aye.

CHAlI RPERSON JENKINS:  Opposed?

Passes.

(End of the recording.)
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CERTI FI CATE

|, ANDREA L. CLEVENGER, a Certified Stenographic
Court Reporter, of the State of Washington, do hereby
certify that the foregoing proceedi ngs were recorded and
that | was not present at the proceedings; that | was
requested to transcribe the recorded proceedings; that the
recording was transcribed stenographically and reduced to
typewiting under ny direction.

| further certify that the foregoing transcript of
the recorded proceedings, consisting of Pages 1 through 171,
Is, to the best of ny ability, a full, true, and accurate
transcript of all discernible and audi bl e remarks.

Dated and signed this 15th day of My, 2023.

Lz I

Andrea L. O evenger, CCR 3041
(Certified Stenographic Court Reporter)
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